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Separate Financial Statements

2556 2555 2554
2013 2012 2011
WANTIALIUIIY (R1UUN) Operating Results (Million Baht)
Taldsn Total Revenue 2,937 2,870 2,712
mlsannssiivaudeunasnidy EBITDA 534 478 412
mBuazAionsian (EBITDA)
mlsgnd Net Profit 338 286 211
gﬁuzvmn'ﬁ@u (i"humm) Financial Status (Million Baht)
funswdiu Total Assets 2,861 2,626 2,307
wﬁausau Total Liabilities 627 637 550
duzesiiioiu Total Shareholders’ Equity 2234 1.989 1,757
FRTIFIUNIINS U (’s’aﬂa:) Financial Ratios (%)
dasrilagnd Net Profit Margin 1150 9.96 7.77
FATIWAADUUNUIINRUNTNEG (ROA) Return On Assets 12.31 11.58 9.47
dRTINanBULNUADRIUIDIENEYU (ROE) Return On Equity 15.99 15.25 12.21
lasiaduduiugiu wm/iu) Basic Earnings Per Share 6.49 5,50 4.05
(Baht)
ri’qlwiaﬁuﬂ%um (W/9u) Diluted Earnings Per Share 6.40 5.41 3.99
(Baht)
yaed W) Book Value Per Share 4232 37.67 33.28

(Baht)

81Uy (Million Baht)

B 2556/ 2013

&MU (Million Baht)

2555 / 2012

oAy (%)

B 2554/ 2011

usSyN whdu onm- (UMBsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



ANU:NSSUNISUSUN / Board of Directors

unawod arsdu

Js:s1unssums
Sywd S Y
a1y 861

dnsumstiovuluuisng (%)* 0.1896
AAinsAnE / UseiAntsausy
. U%mmmwﬁﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁnﬁr
§2WIMIFINT PaenTaluvinInenay /
fuviiseilegiiu / dszaunsanneuluszes 5 1 dounas
agriu
- U9E5UNTINNNT U3EN WD 9iR (NrnTu)
- dsrsuhedndnd usEm Inenbing s1ie
- Ysemunssung UsEm sausn eslaluda
Wszwalng) in
- YsEmunIsNms U3 uzeni-an lawfia $im
(WD)
- N9INNTT USEYM UenanuAu LLNUELLWF’]LQB%G Ohle
- NIINMT U3EN unannda 91ia
- NIINNTT USEM dNNNT A710R (NNTU)

1Y

- N9INNT USEW muqmmwnﬁu‘[ﬂu: MR (NABU)

o o

- n3uns USEw lan 1usend uwmas 9in
2529 - 2556

& o o

- U5z5unssNns uSEw Inshing 91de
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Mr. Pong Sarasin

Chairman
Nationality ;. Thai
Age . 86 Years

Ratio of Shareholding (%)* 0.1896
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D

e Ph.D.(Hon.)in Business Administration,

Chulalongkorn University /

Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present

- Chairman : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Honorary Chairman : ThaiNamthip Company
Limited.

- Chairman : Honda Automobile (Thailand) Company

Limited.

- Chairman : Shangri-La Hotel Public Company
Limited.

- Director : Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company
Limited.

- Director : Bangkok Glass Industry Company
Limited

- Director : Sammakorn Public Company Limited.

- Director : Rojana Industrial Park Public Company
Limited.

- Director : Home Product Center Company Limited

1986 - 2013
- Chairman : ThaiNamthip Company Limited.
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faymi C dilu
218 : 69 9
dnsunstiovuluuiing (%) ©  Lid

AAinsAnE / Usinnsausu
o 3nd endand wazdfnssuemans
NNl WASEDA Uitmﬂﬂjl!u /
sunissuileqiu / dssaunmsanheuluszes 5 3 faunde
fegiiu
- NINMT USEN AAU iR (WrNT)
- dszpunssnms uiEm Tele Loy nfy Toaned sniin
- U5¥5IUNTINNIS USHY UNanuAU LLNuELLWﬂLQa%
Cahl
- nsannns Ussw Tely 896 oad Toanvs saiia
2550 - 2556
- AYINMTLATUIEEIUNTINATLSING
uitn Taly lofu lnw 9in

Mr. Hirofumi Miki

Director

Nationality Japanese
Age : 69 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Science and Engineering,
Waseda University, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Chairman : Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Limited.

- Chairman : Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company
Limited.
- Director : Toyo Ink SC Holdings Company Limited
2007 - 2013
- Director and President : Toyo Seikan Kaisha
Limited.

uowla Wauworaud
AsSsSUMSdas: 1a:US:5UNSSUMSAsovaou

i S (1Y
218 77
dnsunstiovuluuiing (%) ©  Lid

AAinsAnE / UsziRnnsausu
o Yuywimaiyd ymaensalamineds
o FEputiyBiueyan (CPA. NO.2336)
e Certified Internal Audit AnANANR 210
Institute of Internal Auditors (CIA. NO.30861) /
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
fuvissilagii / dszaumsanmnanulusses 5 U dounds
fegiiu
- NINMIBNTE LA UIEEIUNTINNNTATINEDL
U3EN W18 iR (W)
- U5E5U USEW 20RnULaUALNLUI LR
ABUTALAUT 911
- NTTNMTBNILUAZNIINNTATINN DL
i YsedudulnedTand i (@vnwsw)

Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn
Independent Director and Chairman of

the Audit Committee
Nationality . Thai
Age . 77 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)*
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Accountancy,
Chulalongkorn University
e Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)
(CPANO.2336)
e Honorary Certified Internal Auditor from
The Institute of Internal Auditors (CIA.NO.30861) /
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit
Committee : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- President : Audit and Management Consultant
Company Limited.
- Independent Director and Audit Committee :
Thaivivat Insurance Public Company Limited.

-none-

Usun uhdu onm (umsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited



ulginw  oodoNudL

NSSUNSo&s:

Sy o e

218 67 1
dnsumstiovuluuiing (%) ©  Lid

AAinsAnE / UseiRnnsausu
o UlaTiAanssnaans RnaansaiuIngdy /
suviseuilegiu / dszaunsaheulusses 5 3 douns,
fTagiiu
- N9INMIRETY U3EM WAV AR (NnNTU)
- sy U3t AREIUN wanafn uaudiadnea AasUBLITu
hil
- Snnssamsidansing U3 Yuduudlng dria
(N¥N2ALL)
- SCG Country Executive Director U3zinl3uauny
- 35583 USEM Inewanafnuasiadldud 9a0e (uvna)

Mr. Dhep Vongvanich

Independent Director

Nationality . Thai
Age : 67 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)*
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D

-none-

e Bachelor Degree of Engineering,
Chulalongkorn University /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Independent Director :
Limited.
- Chairman : TPC Vina Plastic and Chemical Corp., Limited.
- Advisor of the President : Siam Cement Public Company
Limited. (SCG)
- SCG Country Executive Director : Vietnam.
Thai Plastic and
Chemicals Public Company Limited.

Crown Seal Public Company

- Member of Board of Directors :

SIEUUSDU 2556
4 Annual Report 2013

SA.0s.g8Wa daaurs

NSSUNMS

i o e
218 : 637
dnsumstiovuluvitng (%) ©  Lid

AaAINSANE / dseidnsausu
o Paygenmefungvang nsEsenieyssina (Hesides
funn) uvmInenduaia Il (SORBONNE) UssinAnsaiaa
W.¢.2519 /

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
fuviseuilegiiu / dszaunsannauluszes 5 U daunde
ffog1u

- N3IWNS U3EM dSU iR (urnp)

- ipnssunsifianistnaienla USE yasam3aned $in

- Uszsunssuns U3 waln e Budan3 din

- dszsnssums vism Ine-laSeu $3a d1ia

- N3IWNN5 USEN SA21 Aiim

- n5INNS USHN wavmesil 91

- n3sums uStw ndned § (edy) in
- NIIWNNT UIEM LaE Apuwail (1933) 41iin
- M3 U3EM Asudiand e

- N95NNS USEW RV easidelstu d9ain

o

- NITNMT U3 Yosen ek 911n

Associate Prof. Dr. Sudhabodi Sattabusya

Director
Nationality . Thai
Age : 63 Years

Ratio of Shareholding (%)* -none-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Doctoral Degree : Docteur en Droit du
Commerce International (mention trésbien)
Pantheon Sorbonne (Paris Il), France 1976 /
e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Senior Vice President : Boon Rawd Brewery Company Limited.
- Chairman : Hesco Food Industry Company Limited.
- Chairman : Thai-Korea Seaweed Company Limited.
- Director : SA21 Company Limited.
- Director : Attorney Company Limited.
- Director : XYP B (ASIA) Company Limited.
- Director : EST. Company (1933)Company Limited.
- Director : Bhirompattana Company Limited.
- Director : Singha Corporation Company Limited.
- Director :

Boon Rawd Trading Company Limited.
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218 62
dnsunsiiofuluuisng (%) lidl

AAinsAnE / UseiRnnsausu
o 13yn3 N’l’ﬂ’lLﬂi‘lﬂiﬂ’]ﬂm% Jiyu Gakuen College
ﬂizmmﬁﬁu /
suviseilegiiu / dszaunsanineuluszes 5 U daunde
fTagiiu
- N9INNT USEW W03 iR (Wvnpu)
- NIINMTLAXUIESIUNTINNITUINT USEN dUdau
Trasasa 91in
- NFINNT UIEM wenanuAu LLNuELLWﬂLT\)a%\‘J 971
2552 - 2556
- UsEsunssunsuims uSEm wudy asniieesa $1in
2552
- NIINNTUATIANUILSIUNTINMSUINNT USEN LU
aTUABSA 1R

Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro

Director

Nationality Japanese
Age : 62 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* : -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Economics
Jiyu Gakuen College, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Director and President : Nippon Closures Company
Limited

- Director : Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.

2009 - 2013
- President : Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
2009
- Director and Executive Vice President :
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

uauanin: Tolslu

NSsUNs

CGT R Wy
218 60T
dnsunstiovuluuiing (%) ©  Lid

AaAinsAne / UsziRnnsausu
. ﬂ%mt:y’]m% Faculty of Engineering, Metal Science, Kyoto
University, Uiztwﬂiﬂﬂu /
suvissuilegiu / dszaunsavheuluszes 5 3 dounde
fagiiu
- N9INNT USEW W03 90iR (Wvnpu)
- Executive Operating Officer & General Manager
International Operations U5t fldUau laasizasa d1in
2550 - 2556
- Operating Officer & General Manager International
Operations V35" audu as1iaesa 91

Mr. Masutaka Hosono

Director

Nationality Japanese
Age : 60 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* : -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D

e Bachelor Degree, Faculty of Engineering, Metal Science,
Kyoto University, Japan. /

Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present

- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Executive Operating Officer & General Manager
International Operations : Nippon Closures Company
Limited.

2007 - 2013
- Operating Officer & General Manager International

Operations : Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

usSyN Wy 91Mm- (UMsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited
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aanAinsAne / Yszianmsausu .

o Yiwwnd wmdsdaans sminedy glor dssmadiu /

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

e Director Certification Program (DCP)
suviveuilegii / dssaumsannenlusces 5 U founds
fTagiiu

= niiumma:ﬁ%’ﬂmﬂmﬂ UIEN W3U 97 (W)

- Operating Officer U55 oy lasawasa i

- NFINNT UIEM UenanuAu LLNuELLWﬂLQﬂ%\‘J 719

- N9INNNT VBN LWBIUWA 9110
2553 - 2556

- General Manager International Operations

3 wudu asnidassa 41in
- sesszsnu uSEm lele lofu wedeea waud
worduflamstu wesia Wuwes (aide) s1ia
2549 - 2555
= Qﬂﬁ'gﬂQé‘fﬂnﬁ'ﬁm&im'ﬂaﬁmu?jwﬁ V3N W3 970 (W)

Mr. Akiyoshi Toba

Director

Nationality . Japanese
Age . 50 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* 0.0189

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Commerce, Chuo University, Japan /
e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director and President : Crown Seal Public Company

Limited.
- Operating Officer : Nippon Closures Company Limited.
- Director : Bangkok Can Manufacturing Company Limited.
- Director : Petpak Company Limited.
2010 - 2013

- General Manager International Operations :
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
- Vice President : Toyo Seikan Technical &
Administration Service Center (Asia) Company Limited.
2006 - 2012
- Senior Vice President-Adminnistration :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

ungansa BIrvIsouna
NSSUMSHas:Ia:NSSUMSASIDaoU

LN S U1
21y : 651
dasunstiofuluuisng (%) ¢ il

AAinsAne / Useiinisausy
o WOLN. (UIVNI3INR). A AInendusIINAERS
e M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, UK. /
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
suvissuileqiu / dssaunsanheuluszes 5 3 dounae
fegiiu
- NIINNIDRITUALNIINNTIATIAED VI WAL A (Nvina)
- dszsnunssunms UiEm e By § Weswed e (o)
- nIsNMIRTREEY UEM vdnning idy win Sia @vmw)
- NIINMIATINEBY UIEN PuwsgasmnIsniuthdn 91in
(Wnu) )
- N3SAMSATIERY USEM afa wiawwesh e (Nvinww)
- pIINMIATRARY USEw e a:lns WBuwesE d1dn
(W) y
- n55ums USEM Ine wasladl laasmed i
- n33umMI U3 uianssuanngd ain
- nssumMs U3tm eaid laulawds d1in
- n3ums U3 Andeeiy Tusend @ain

Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul

Independent Director and the Audit Committee
Nationality ;. Thai
Age . 65 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* -none-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e MA. (Business Administration), Thammasat University
e M.Sc. (Textile Technology), University of Leeds, UK. /
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Independent Director and the Audit Committee :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Chairman : SNC Former Public Company Limited.
- Audit Committee : Asia Plus Securities Public Company Limited.
- Audit Committee : Chumporn Palm Oil Industry Public
Company Limited.
- Audit Committee : Lalin Property Public Company Limited.
- Audit Committee : Thai Agro Energy Public Company Limited.
- Director : Thai Airline Holdings Company Limited.
- Director : Jamjuree Innovations Company Limited.
- Director : SPC Home Ideas Company Limited.
- Director : Witcorp Products Company Limited.

SIEUUSDU 2556
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NSSUNMS

Sw@ S U1
218 : 459
dnsumsiauluudsng (%)*  : 00120

aanAinsdne / Usziansausu
 YSnanln uinagsfia Babson College
dszinAanigawdni /
e Director Certification Program
(DCP English Program)
suviseilegiiu / dszaunsanineuluszes 5 U daunde
fagiiu
- N9INNT USEW W03 AR (Wvnpu)
- NITUMIUAZNTINNNGEIANT VIS 1@Tug 91in (W)
- n35NMT USEN vinwasu (Ineuaus) d1in
- NIIWMT UIEM LRGN Toaied Sifa
- NIIWMT UIEM LRGN Lm’m%m Cahio
- NIINMT VAW §SuED weuils e
- N93NM3 USEN Great Brands Limited

Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook

Director

Nationality . Thai
Age . 45 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :0.0120

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e MBA of Babson College, USA /
e Director Certification Program
(DCP English Program)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Director and President : Serm Suk Public Company
Limited.
- Director : Petform (Thailand) Limited.
- Director : Serm Suk Holding Company Limited.
- Director : Serm Suk Beverage Company Limited.
- Director : Serm Suk Training Company Limited.
- Director : Great Brands Limited.

sA.as.adua Nsawya

NSSUMSO&s:

Lo S U1
21y : 5971
dasunstiofuluuing (%) ¢ il

AaAinsAne / Useiinisausy

e Suen IAINTINAIEAST mmmﬂiﬂaﬁmwﬁn

aAInendndlsdun dseweadiju /

e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Funisauileaiu / dszaumsannaulusses 5 U daunas
fegiiu

- N9INNNIRETE U3EM WhRU iR (nnTU)

- 2sfuszanaizmelulainieaivig

AU ANEAEAT - RIRINTAINNAINEAY

- nsINNSBEST USEN wSBeudd wined 9aim (Wra)
2540 - 2554

= QLqulmﬂmmnzﬁuqmmwnﬁumms

an1gaamnIINwisUszmAlnelunsUszgn Codex
Committee on Food Hygiene 'naﬂﬂiomimmg'm
2MMITEniNlssna Fedarilageednsanyssenmif
FAO/WHO
2547 - 2552
- fiwnmaany aaniwdumeilyaiuaznsfsening
UFznANag

Associate Prof. Dr. Suwimon Keeratipibul
Independent Director

Nationality : Thai
Age : 59 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* : -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Doctor of Engineering (Fermentation Technology),
Hiroshima University, Japan /
e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Independent Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Lecturer at the Department of Food Technology :
Faculty of Science, Chulalongkorn University
- Independent Director : President Bakery Public Company
Limited.
1997 - 2011
- Representative of the Food Industry Group :
The Federation of Thai Industries in Codex Committee on
Food Hygiene of Codex Alimentarius Commission,
Organized by Food and Agriculture Organization (FAO)
and World Health Organization (WHO) of UN
2004 - 2009
- Associate Judge : The Central Intellectual Property and
International Trade

usSyN Wy 91Mm- (UMsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited
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andinsAne / Yszianmsausu
o 3an3 Commerce, N IMENAY Keio,
Usenadilu /
° f ) & o PRI o
suvtsuilegiu / dssaumsannenlusces 5 1 dounds
Tagiiu
- N93NNS USEW W03 e (vnpu)
- nssnsuazgiamsiva v3En uenenuau
wuUyunALIIn3e 9110 .
- n55NNT USEM uind weu Aulundu e
- n33ums U5 lnauea Bla wau afien (Usznalny) sim
- Executive Officer U358 laly lofu 91
2553

o

- féamsival V38 Wing weu Hulundu Srin
2552

- Operating Officer U5¥ lalelziu  lnwn d1in
2550 - 2552

- Chief Representative of Chicago Liaisan Office

u3sm Taly lodu Tnon 91im

Mr. Susumu Yamada

Director

Nationality . Japanese
Age . 60 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :  -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Commerce,
Keio University, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Director and President : Bangkok Can Manufacturing
Company Limited.
- Director : Next Can Innovation Company Limited.

- Director : Global Eco-can Stock (Thailand) Company Limited.

- Executive Officer : Toyo Seikan Company Limited.
2010

- President : Next Can Innovation Company Limited.
2009

- Operating Officer : Toyo Seikan Kaisha Ltd.
2007 - 2009

- Chief Representative of Chicago Liaisan Office :

Toyo Seikan Kaisha Ltd.

uendse:uls: Ton:us:

nssuUNs

Hya C diu
218 637
dnsumstafuluudsmy (%) ¢ Ll

aanAinsAne / Ysziansausu
e 130193 Metallurgy Faculty of Engineering, #¥1nanae
IBARAKI Uszinadiiu /
suvtssuilegiu / Ussaunsavheulusses 5 9 dounde
ey
= niiumiLLa:é’dy’ﬁ'mﬁé’fmnﬁ‘lmﬂm'ﬂaﬁmmﬂﬁﬂ
VIEN W3U 9 (W)
- General Manager Quality Management Department
uSEn fuveu lasaesa 91in
2552 - 2556
- General Manager Quality Management Department
P38 ludu asntieesa 91
2550 - 2552
- General Manager Customer Service Technique
Department U3#% Llaulu asdnAasa 91iin

Mr. Tsurusaburo Okamura

Director

Nationality Japanese
Age . 63 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* : -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree, Metallurgy Faculty of Engineering,
IBARAKI University, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Director and Senior Vice President - Technic :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- General Manager Quality Management Department :
Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2009 - 2013
- General Manager Quality Management Department :
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
2007 - 2009
- General Manager Customer Service Technique
Department : Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.

SIEUUSDU 2556
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unawouMny  1A0AasUNS
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N S U1
21 . 547
dasunstiofuluuitng (%) ¢ il

andinsAne / Ysziansausu

e MA. (Economics), Northwestern University, USA. /

e Financial Statements for Directors (FSD)

e Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)
fuvissuilagiiu / dszaumsannenlusces 5 U daunas
ey

- N9INNNIDFTLUALNIINNIIATIANDY

U3EN /AU AR (W)

- 9IUAANIENTIMIARY NTENTNNITANY

- 055NN MssalviruResnasuwil T Imalng

- n33Nns U neasussiudy S1dn

- NINNNS USHN Asd Aauwau SR (Nnaw)

- n35umT U3En msdulne e @)

- N3NNI swAIIIng IR (Wvnpw)

ABUANTNATINGINA NILTNTINIARY

- 2BUANINTTNRN NTENTWNTARG

Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra

Independent Director and the Audit Committee
Nationality . Thai
Age . 54 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* -none-
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e M.A.(Economics), Northwestern University, USA /
e Financial Statements for Directors (FSD)
e Role of the Chairman Program (RCP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Independent Director and the Audit Committee :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Deputy Permanent Secretary : Ministry of Finance
- Director : Mass Rapid Transit Authority of Thailand.
- Director : ThaiSri Insurance Company Limited.
- Director : Cathay Leaseplan Public Company Limited.

- Director : Thai Airways International Public Company Limited.

- Director : TMB Bank Public Company Limited.
Director General, Excise Department : Ministry of Finance

- Director General, Comptroller General’s Department :
Ministry of Finance

UOENDUNMWS  1IQIJASEY
e |AYIUNMSANUNSSUNISUSUN

e lavnyMsusSun
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e Company Secretary Program (CSP)

e [Effective Minute Taking (EMT)

e Board Reporting Program (BRP)

e Company Reporting Program (CRP)
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Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk
e Secretary to the Board of Directors

e Company Secretary
Nationality : Thai
Age : 49 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* 0.0093
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Political Science,
Thammasat University /

e Company Secretary Program(CSP)

e Effective Minute Taking (EMT)

e Board Reporting Program (BRP)

e Company Reporting Program (CRP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present

- Company Secretary Office Manager :

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Secretary to the Board of Directors :

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Company Secretary :

Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

N3IUMTUTENY W 14 v Lifianuduiuinne
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ANBLNA 1.
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Remarks 1. All above 14 Directors have not family relations.
2. * Ratio of shareholding includes shares of spouse

and minor children.
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e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)

e Director Certification Program (DCP)
suviseuilegiu / dszaunsanheuluszes 5 3 daunde
ey
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- Operating Officer USEM fUUau lasasesa i
2553 - 2556

- General Manager International Operations
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2549 - 2555
- {reddanisinajonlasunims
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Mr. Akiyoshi Toba

President

Nationality : Japanese
Age . 50 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* 0.0189

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Commerce, Chuo University, Japan /
e Director Accreditation Program (DAP)
e Director Certification Program (DCP)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- President : Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Operating Officer : Nippon Closures Company Limited.
2010 - 2013
- General Manager International Operations :
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
- Vice President : Toyo Seikan Technical & Administration
Service Center (Asia) Company Limited.
2006 - 2012
- Senior Vice President - Administration :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
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- General Manager Quality Management Department
u3¥ ey leaawada s1in
2552 - 2556
- General Manager Quality Management Department
u3¥ ey leaawwada s1in
2550 - 2552
- General Manager Customer Service Technique
Department U5 fliddeu Tnaswasa 91in

Mr. Tsurusaburo Okamura
Senior Vice President - Technic

Nationality Japanese
Age . 63 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree, Metallurgy Faculty of

Engineering, IBARAKI University, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present

- Senior Vice President - Technic : Crown Seal Public

Company Limited.

- General Manager Quality Management Department :

Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2009 - 2013
- General Manager Quality Management Department :
Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
2007 - 2009
- General Manager Customer Service Technique
Department : Japan Crown Cork Company Limited.
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CIA. No. 30833 / suvissuileqiu / dssaunsanheuluszes 5 3 faunae

e Company Secretary Program (CSP) ey

e Effective Minute Taking (EMT) = ﬁé’ﬂmamﬂiamu V3EN WAy iR (W)
suvisauilegiu / dszaunsanheuluszes 5 3 dounae 2548 - 2555
2547 - a1 - Hdensdhendn 1 U3 iy e @)
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Mr. Ruj Tantsetthi

Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan Vice President - Plant

Vice President - Finance and Accounting Nationality : Thai
Nationality . Thai Age : 49 Years
Age . 57 Years Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :0.0019
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :  -none- Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
Education / Director Training Courses with 10D e Master of Business Administration

e Mini MBA Thammasat University (Major Organization Management),

e Bachelor Degree of Business Administration, Dhurakij Pundit University

Assumption University, CIA No. 30833 / Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively

e Company Secretary Program (CSP) Present

e Effective Minute Taking (EMT)
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
2004 - Present
- Vice President - Finance and Accounting :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.

- Vice President - Plant :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
2005 - 2012
- Production 1 Manager :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
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- Manager, Engineering management department,
Production Division U5t fldUsu laasiwasa d1in
2545 - 2556
- Manager, Engineering management department,
Production Division U38% lwudu asndmesa 91ia

Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka
Vice President - Technic

Nationality . Japanese
Age . 43 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :  -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree, Department of Mechanical
Engineering, Faculty of Engineering Division,
Nihon University, Japan /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
Present
- Vice President - Technic :
Crown Seal Public Company Limited.
- Manager, Engineering management department,

Production Division : Nippon Closures Company Limited.

2002 - 2013
- Manager, Engineering management department,
Production Division : Japan Crown Cork Company

Limited.
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Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul
Vice President - Sales

Nationality . Thai
Age . 51 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* . -none-

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Master Degree of Computer Science, Faculty of

Engineering, Chulalongkorn University /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively

Present
- Vice President - Sales : Crown Seal Public Company
Limited.
2007 - 2013
- International Business Manager : Crown Seal Public
Company Limited.
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Mr. Thongchai Srisook
Personnel Manager

Nationality . Japanese
Age . 55 Years
Ratio of Shareholding (%)* :0.0033

Education / Director Training Courses with 10D
e Bachelor Degree of Political Science,

Chulalongkorn University /
Position / Past experience of 5 years retroactively
1994 - Present
- Personnel Manager : Crown Seal Public Company
Limited.

vanewn 1. s 7 v lilenaduiuinweseuaiserinetiu
- 9 U ,
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Remarks 1. All above 7 executives have not family relations.
2. * Ratio of shareholding Includes shares of
spouse and minor children
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Name
Type of Business

Registration No.
Authorized Capital
Paid-up Capital
Par Value

By Dividing into

Address
Telephone
Fax

Homepage

Company Secretary

Company Registrar

Independent Auditor

Legal Consultant

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

Manufacturing and sale of Crown Caps,

Pilfer-Proof Caps, Maxi Series

and Plastic Caps

0107537000416 (Bor Mor Jor 288)

528,000,000 Baht

528,000,000 Baht

10 Baht

Ordinary share 52,000,012 Shares
799,988 Shares

5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Prachatipat,

Tanyaburi, Pathumthani 12130

(622) 533-0450-9

(622) 974-1118

www.crownseal.co.th

Preferred share

Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk

Tel: 0-2533-0450 # 638

E-mail: napaporn@crownseal.co.th
Thailand Securities Depository (Thailand)
Company Limited.

62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand
Building, 4th Floor, Rachadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel. (622) 229-2800 Fax. (622) 359-1259
Ms.Sumalee Reewarabandith and/or
Manitkajohnkit and/or
Ms.Vissuta Jariyathanakorn

EY Office Limited (Previous Ernst &
Young Office Limited)

33rd Floor, Lake Rajada Office Complex
193/136-137 Rajadapisek Road,
Klongtoey, Bangkok 10110

Tel. (622) 264-0777 Fax. (622) 264-0789-90
S.AT. Associates Legal & Tax Co., Ltd.
444, 4th Floor, Olympia Thai Tower.
Ratchadapisek Rd., Samsennok,

Huay Kwang, Bangkok 10310

Tel. (622) 541-4214-6 Fax.(622) 541-4200

Ms.Pimjai

Juristic person where the Company’s share holding at least 10%

PETPAK Co., Ltd.
Address

Type of Business
Telephone

Fax

% Share Holding

Type of Share

: 170/87, 32™ Floor Ocean Tower 1 Bldg.,

New Ratchadaphisek Rd., Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110

: Manufacturing and Sale of Plastic Bottle
: (622) 648-6100
: (622) 648-6199
: 140,000 Shares

(10% of registered capital)

: Ordinary share
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Company’s Overview

1. Company Business Overview

Crown Seal Public Company Limited is a manufacturer and distributor of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof

Caps, Maxi-Crown, Maxi-Cap, Maxi-P and Plastic Caps used as bottling and container seals for products
namely carbonated drinks, milk, beer, liquor, soda, drinking water and medical supplies including the hand-held
capping machine and Maxi-Cap Sealing machine. Furthermore the company also earns the revenue from the

Printed Sheets Service.

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was established in 1968 by receiving technological supports from
Nippon Closures Co., Lid., a company in Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd. of Japan. With the high quality products
and sufficient production capacity, the Company has distributed the products to leading customers both in country
and overseas with the sales revenue of over 2,700 Million Baht per year at the present. Major shareholders
are in the packaging industrial and beverage group such as; Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., Toyo Seikan Co., Lid,
Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Lid., ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd, Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd., and Green Spot Co., Ltd.

Throughout the operational period of being engaged in the business of caps and closures packaging,
the Company has developed and built up long standing relations with the customers by firmly adhering to
the productions of quality products and create satisfactions to the customers which, in this respect, leading
technology from Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Limited is used in the productions. In addition, the Company has
still devoted its utmost effort and firmly determined at all out endeavor possible to step forward in becoming

the leader in packaging in the future.

2. Significant Change and Development

Crown Seal Public Company Limited was registered for incorporation as a juristic person under the
category of a limited company on 26 April 1968 with the initial registered capital of 100,000,000 Baht divided
into 10,000,000 ordinary shares with par value of 10 Baht each. The Company was established through a joint
venture of a domestic beverage production companies with Berli Jucker Co., Lid., and Toyo Seikan Kaisha
Co., Ltd., where providing academic and technical assistances on the productions of Crown Caps, Pilfer-Proof
Caps, Maxi-Caps and Plastic Caps The Company was granted a listed company in the Stock Exchange of
Thailand on 30 December 1977.

On 2 February 1994, the Company made a registration converting its status to a Public Company
Limited in accordance with Public Company Limited Act, B. E. 2535 (1992), under the Registration No. Bor.
Mor.Jor.288 (PLC.288). The Registration Number is currently changed to 0107537000416.

The Year 2011:

e There was no significant change. Other than that, the Company bought an automatic warehouse building
and equipments from Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Litd., at the price of 45,422,145 Baht and the

ownership was transferred from such company on 31 August 2011.

; SIEUUSOU 2556
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The Year 2012:

e The Company increased the capital in PETPAK Co., Ltd., twice, thus, accounting for a total of 180,000
shares at 450 Baht per share, hence totaling amounting to 81 million Baht which consequently resulting
in the Company to have its shares in PETPAK Co., Ltd. increased to a total of 260,000 shares or

18.6% of the total number of the shares.
The Year 2013:

e Toyo Seikan Kaisha Co., Ltd., changed its structure and renamed it to Toyo Seikan Group Holdings
Co., Ltd.,, and transferred all 5,280,000 shares of Crown Seal Public Company Limited or 10% of the
total number of the shares to Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd., which is a subsidiary company that its shares

were held by Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Limited since 1 April 2013.

e Japan Crown Cork Co., Ltd., the major shareholder of the Company in the totaling number of 19,843,338
shares or 37.58% of the total number of shares changed its name to Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., since
1 April 2013.

e The Company sold its 120,000 shares in PETPAK Co., Ltd., at the price of 483.48 Baht per share to
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd., leaving the Company’s shares in PETPAK Co., Ltd. remaining
at 140,000 or 10.0% of the registered capital.

3. Ownership Structure of the Company in affiliated companies

Registered
Type of % Shares
Company’s Name Type of business Capital
share holding
(Million Baht)

Affiliated Companies
PETPAK Co., Ltd. Plastic Bottle Common 140 10.0
Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. Ceramic Kitchenware Common 100 10.0
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Easy open end, Common 1,800 1.6
Co., Ltd. 2&3 pieces can

Remark * Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. stopped its operation since 2008

4. Relation between the major shareholders business

The Company receives technology supports from Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. and Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.
of Japan. As a result, the Company paid the royalty fee by percentage of net sales amount of each product

along with other expenses if necessary for technician coming from Japan.

usSyN Wty nm- (UMsY)
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Nature of Business

Our Products

Crown cap is a bottle closure made from pressed coated steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel)
lined with liner to prevent leakage. Once closed, Crown cap preserves the original content quality with an
excellent sealing performance. Crown cap is used for carbonated drinks, beer, soda, soymilk and fruit juice.

Pilfer-proof (PP Cap) cap is a screw cap developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing
aluminum sheet into cylindrical shape, perforated (between the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust-proof,
easy to open, can be recapped if the content is not wholly consumed. Pilfer-Proof cap is suitable for carbonated
drinks, health drinks, spirit and medicine.

Plastic cap is a screw cap made from plastic resin which is melted and molded into shape. The inside
is designed either with or without liner material to prevent leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for
easy opening, it can recap after used. Now Plastic cap is used in many products upon customer’s requirement
such as

e Plastic cap with a liner: use for carbonated drinks or product using high temperature filling proc-

ess such as tea, milk, energy drinks

e Plastic cap without liner: provided anti-leaking feature without liner material, use for drinking water,

fruit juice.
e Plastic cap without liner for product using high temperature filling process: use with; milk, tea.

e Plastic cap without liner: use for Aseptic filling process.

Maxi crown is bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated tin free steel shell. The score
is developed for easy opening by simply pulling the attached ring. This closure gives a perfect anti pilferage
feature. Maxi crown is recapping for non-refrigerate product.

Maxi cap is a bottle closure made from coated aluminum sheet pressed into one piece, scored and
lined. Apart from the same general characteristic as Maxi crown, Maxi cap made of aluminum, is rust-proof
and more suitable for product kept in high humidity. Maxi cap is used for drinking water, beer, spirit and fruit
juice.

Maxi- P is a bottle closure made from pressed and scored coated aluminum shell. The general char-
acteristic is the same as Maxi cap except the pulling ring is made of plastic. Maxi-P used for drinking water,
beer, spirit and Fruit juice.

Hand-crowner the hand-crowner is specially designed to crimp crown caps tightly, it is efficient in
protecting the product inside. The hand-crowner is easy to use and can be hand carried.

Maxi-crimping machine is a Single-hand, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine can be used to crimp
either Maxi series. It is designed with high technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.

Printing service is provided for coating, printing on steel plate and aluminum sheets before forming
shaped. The service is also cover to design, pattern from the high technology printing system.
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Revenue structure of the Company for the past 3 years

2013 2012 2011
Revenue Type Million Million Million
% % %
Baht Baht Baht
Net Income
1. Manufacture and Sales of caps 2,641.65 89.94 2,569.44 89.54 2,445.79 90.19
2. Printing Service and Sales of 142.80 4.86 134.28 4.68 92.78 342
Printed Sheets

3. Others Income* 152.64 5.20 166.02 578 173.34 6.39
Total Revenues of consolidated 2,937.09 100.00 2,869.74 100.00 2,711.91 100.00
financial statements

Remark : * Indicating in accordance to consolidated financial statements which include other revenues such as

income from sales of scrap metal, administration, and others.

Market and Competition

In 2013, the plastic packages have continued to grow consistently while the glass bottles and aluminum
cans seem to grow at a slower pace mainly because the beverage products which are contained in glass
bottles and aluminum cans has an affected from restrictions placed by the public sectors on sale promotion
of some beverages effective on the second quarter of the year. On the third quarter of the year, the excise
tax on alcoholics which are mainly contained in glass bottles and cans has been adjusted upward so the retail
price in the market was up. Moreover, during the second half of the year, the political and climatic conditions have
not facilitated the consumption, purchasing power in the agricultural sector have shrunk because the delay in
payment to farmers by the government. The tourism sector has also affected by the political incident. However,
some beverage products such as ready-to-drink tea have been coupled with sale promotion campaigns such
as laser coding underneath the cap with SMS sending, throughout the year to maintain their market share.
Such campaign have been widely interested and enlarged to the other beverage drinks apart from ready-to-
drink tea and healthy beverage drinks.  Besides, drinking water in PET bottles has grown continuously like
the production capacity of those major manufacturers.

By overall, the beverage industry in 2013, continued to grow between 5% and 10%, subject to the
type of industry.

For oversea market, the company exported to ASEAN countries and some non-ASEAN countries
such as Taiwan, Australia and New Zealand while the economy of those countries has expanded quite well.
Moreover, the side-effect from tax reduction agreement among ASEAN countries and a result from agreement
among ASEAN and other countries such as China, India and Japan since 2010 has greatly enhance the market
opportunities and also the competition, particularly competitors form China which has mainly emphasized on
low cost products. The open-up and foreign investment promotion of Myanmar have encouraged the growth
in beverage industry in Myanmar market. That is an opportunity for the company to make an expansion in
Myanmar. As a result, the company is required to arrange the strategy focusing on quality and production cost
to ensure competitiveness.
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In addition, the downtrend economy in EU has caused the competitors in European countries to look
for the market in Asia. That has increased the number of the competitors in the region. The Company tries
maintaining the market share through controls in cost and price, including participation in price competition
with international beverage manufacturers based on sale volume and supply scope in the region to increase
the opportunity in sales.

Marketing strategies of the company in 2013 were as follows:

(1) Product quality

In 2013, the company had been certified of the Food Safety Management System ISO 22000:2005
and the Food Chain Safety Management System FSSC220000 on September 7, 2013, Occupational Health
and Safety Management System TIS 18001 and Occupational Health and Safety Management System (BS
OHSAS 18001:2007, Thai Industrial Standard TIS 18001-2554) on August 23, 2013. In addition the existing
quality management system are continuously undertaken such as Quality Management System ISO 9001:2008,
Environment Management System ISO 14001:2004, Good Manufacturing practice (GMP) , Hazard Analysis and
Critical Control Point (HACCP) those are the system involved with the food and beverage manufacturing, the
company also implementing Total Productivity Maintenance System (TPM) throughout the organization to enhancing
confidence to the customers that our caps will keep their products in excellent quality till they were delivered
to the consumers.

(2) Price

In 2013 the price of major raw materials has slightly fluctuated so the company is able to manage
the production cost efficiently. As a result, the company has been able to set the price strategy for each
product proposed to the customers appropriately. Nonetheless, the customers have changed their purchasing
policy so the price strategy is required to be modified to suit each product in each beverage industry with
consideration on the production capacity sale and purchase portion of each customer. The company, however,
has maintained its policy on fair trade without any market dumping or any action which may distort the selling
price from the actual level.

(8) Services

The company is still able to provide response and give priority to the before and after sale services
through competent team work, both selling team and technical service team, to ensure that the customers
have been provided with quality and standard products of the company. The customers have been trained
and exchanged the information with the company and in the business premise of the customers related to
product employment, maintenance and inspection after use to ensure that the products of the company could
be served to protect the best quality of customer’s products completely. The technical service teams also
manage their visiting schedule to join the customer preventive maintenance in order to inspect the capping
machine and confirm the proper capping machine setting to ensure proper capping condition.

; SIEUUSOU 2556
30 i Annual Report 2013



BT, AT ey 4

For the product delivery service, the priority was given to correctness, completeness and timeliness as
indicated by the customers and the delivery regulations have been complied strictly with close follow-up and
coordination with the customers. The GPS vehicle tracking system has been installed to monitor and checked
the delivery status rapidly, the secure lock system settled on the doors of the delivery truck will keep the cus-
tomers confident that the merchandises would not be opened during the delivery route as the customers are
able to check immediately for the damage before the merchandises were accepted. In addition, the alliance
of the company has been competent in the transport. That has helped the company to make the delivery
to the customers in case of urgency and to facilitate the delivery management conveniently and rapidly. For
some customers who would like to pick up the merchandises themselves, the company would determine the
date and time of acceptance of merchandises to ensure convenience, speed and efficiency of the services.

(4) Product development

At present the beverage market has changed rapidly in terms of product, sale promotion, distribution
channel and target group. Thus the suitable package is required to help satisfy the rapid change of the market.
Such incident has incurred not only in Thailand but also in the region. Therefore, the packaging employment
has been monitored closely through exchange of information with customers and study on information of
various industries to catch up the changes in modernity, convenience of the consumers, product safety and
pricing in order to maintain the production cost. In 2013, the company has increased its production capacity
for plastic caps through factory expansion and increase in production lines to have the plastic caps covering
every product. For metal cap products, the emphasis has been made on development of thinner metal sheet
to reduce the cost incurred to the customers and the company while the development has been enlarged to
apply with variety of works, including regular filling, hot filing and hot filling with pasteurized process. The
investment has been made in the laser coding to satisfy the promotion campaign on SMS sending by the
customers, which is widely popular. The expansion could be applied to every product sold by the company
in the market.

Industrial Overview

1. Market size and growth

The market size of packaging for glass bottles metal caps in 2013 has declined in the rate of
2% compared with that of the preceding year, partly due to the tendency of greater employment of plastic
packaging and slower consumption in relation to the sluggish economic conditions resulted from the political
uncertainty which has affected the consumers’ spending, particularly the consumers in the agricultural sector
whose incomes are uncertain due to the delay in the projects of the government. Additionally, the excise tax
of the alcoholic beverages has increased in September 2013, most of them are contained in glass bottles and
sealed with metal cap. As a result, the selling price of such beverage has increased and the consumption has
declined. While the political conflict has reduced the number of foreign tourists during the tourism seasons at
the end of the year. Thus the incomes from consumption of the tourists have declined as well. The market
for packaging with plastic cap in 2013 for carbonated beverages, drinking water, tea, functional drinks, healthy
drinks and fruit juice, including the beverages filled with aseptic filling system could grow at over 10% with
continued growing tendency. Throughout 2013, the beverage manufacturers have continued their marketing

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited £ 31



_EnnGW e E\s __ == _ 5=

|

promotion campaign with various strategies focusing on provincial markets, promotion of exports particularly
to ASEAN countries, packaging size adjustment, sports promotion campaigns. As the beverage manufacturers
are able to increase their sales, the market of packaging will be enlarged too.

2. Competition

As the Southeast Asian region has become a free trade area, the trade and investment market in this
region has grown continuously, including the industries related to beverages. The domestic manufacturers
have increased their production capacity, plus investment by foreigners, both new beverage manufacturers and
packaging manufacturers and the existing manufacturers, through expansion of production capacity, employment
of new machines to enhance their productivity at lower cost. Consequently the competition is unavoidable
and the customers are having more choices for packaging of the same products with increased sources of
production, both domestic manufacturers and overseas. The market has belonged to the customers.

The company is aware of the changes and has started a product study and development to satisfy
the market and to enlarge the market into new beverage industries with attention to product quality in every
step of production, cooperation with customers to reduce the production cost through joint cost reduction
project, sale of products at fair price, continued before and after sale services to build the competitiveness.

3. Business trend

The beverage industry has continued to grow and has introduced new products to the market at all
times, particularly tea beverages, healthy beverages, skin-promotion drink, fruit juice, herbal drinks or functional
drinks. They are well accepted by the consumers while the consumers’ behavior has changed with priority
given to their health and changes in lifestyle; therefore, the plastic containers have become more popular and
have replaced glass bottles in some industries significantly. Plastic containers have been widely employed
due to their quality of easy formation, flexibility and light weight at suitable cost for lower use of raw materi-
als. Besides the consumers have demanded the containers that are easy to use, to carry with light weight,
beautiful shape and eco-friendly. That is the driving forces for wide and rapid popularity of plastic packaging.

Such trend has caused the company to prepare its production capacity of plastic caps to facilitate all kind of
beverages and drinks and to expand the market to Southeast Asian region of which the beverage industries
have a tendency to grow in the same direction.

4. Barriers for new entrants

The company has received modern technology for production of caps from Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.,
a subsidiary of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Co., Ltd., the leader of packaging manufacturers in Japan so the
products of the company are reliable to the customers for their quality. At present, it is found that some
beverage manufacturers have invested in production of their own packages to reduce their cost and risk from
shortage. Therefore, it is easy for the new entrants to beverage cap manufacturing industry to enter the market
particularly plastic cap manufacturing industry but the competition is high while they need modern production
technology to increase their competitiveness in quality and price. In addition they need to build confidence
in their products and relationship with their customers and trading partners in this industry.

However, the ASEAN free trade agreement has provided an opportunity to various packages and caps
from overseas to enter the market unavoidably. To reduce the risk from losing market share to new entrants,
the company has looked to expand its market, both locally and internationally.
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5. Possibility of Product Substitutes

The packaging market has rapidly changed during the past 5-10 years while plastic packaging products
have gained more popularity and have expanded into various sectors of the beverage market in accordance
with the behavior of the consumers whose lifestyle prefers convenience, variety of choices and opportunity and
response to distribution, transport, reuse and recycle for other works or inventions. In the near future, there is
no other trend for new packaging products to replace plastic packaging. Therefore, the company has enlarged
its production capacity for greater plastic caps and there are plans of distribution into other markets such as
drinking water.

For some drinking beverages which require freshness of the taste, the products are required to be
maintained to ensure durability and distribution channel for certain groups which prefer glass bottles and metal
caps. The development of plastic caps has continued to grow and there is a tendency of changes in some
groups of products in the near future.

Sales and Sales Percentage of Major Customers

Details of the past 3 years of sales to top ten major customers and sales percentage when compared
to total sales are given as follows:

Unit: Million Baht

Year Total Sales Sales to top ten customers % of total sales
2011 2,539 1,911 753
2012 2,704 1,995 738
2013 2,784 2,008 721

Among the top ten customers, three were shareholders of the Company, namely:

1) Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Company Limited
2) Serm Suk Public Company Limited
3) Green Spot Company Limited

In the past three years, The Company did not sell to any customer in excess of 30% of its total sales.
Ratio of Domestic and Export Sales

Unit: Million Baht

Year Domestic Sales Export Sales Total Sales
2011 1,994 545 2,539
(%) 785 215 100
2012 2,141 563 2,704
(%) 79.18 20.82 100
2013 2,163 621 2,784
(%) 77.69 22.31 100
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Major countries for exports are Indonesia, Myanmar, Vietnam, Australia, New Zealand, Taiwan, Laos
Philippines and Cambodia etc.
Right and Restrictive on Business practice

The Company entered into technical licenses agreement with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., whereby the
Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps. Compensation is payable at a per-
centage of net sales of products stipulated in the agreement.

Production Capacity and Quantity

Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011
Total Capacity Total Capacity Total Capacity
Product
Quantity Utilization Quantity Utilization Quantity Utilization
(Million pcs.)| Rate (%) |(Million pcs.)| Rate (%) |(Million pcs.)| Rate (%)
Caps 14,180 58 14,058 57 13,998 56

e Raw materials and raw materials suppliers

The policy of the company is to promote and support domestic industries so if the raw materials have
the suitable quality, standard and cost not more than that of the imports, the company will make a purchase
domestically. The purchasing policy is to procure raw materials from more than one supplier to ensure quality
of the products in accordance with the standard at the suitable price and timely delivery.

To select the raw material suppliers, the priority is given to quality of the raw materials employed in
the production first with clear inspection criteria and consistent examination on the raw material suppliers of
the company to ensure that the raw materials employed would not affect the quality of the products. New
raw material suppliers will be searched systematically each year through separation of raw material suppliers
by type of raw materials, test of raw materials by the quality assurance division in accordance with the inter-
national assessment standards such as ISO, GMP, HACCP, OHSAS and FSSC 22000 to prevent shortage of

raw materials for the production of the company.

Product Major Raw Materials % to domestic procure
Metal caps Thin plate / Aluminum plate Thin plate 80/ Aluminum plate 80
Plastic caps Polypropylene 80

The company does not have any supplier held more than 30% of the total raw material purchase
amount.
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Production Process

Metal caps Plastic caps Printing production
MATERIAL MATERIAL MATERIAL
Thin plate / Aluminum plate Thermoplastic Thin plate / Aluminum plate

SLITTING PRESS COATING
COATING LINER PRINTING
PRINTING PRINTING

PRESS PACKING

LINER
PACKING
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Risk Factor

During the normal operation of the Company, there are some factors that could widely affect the
performance of it. These factors could be both internal and external factors that the Company cannot control,

such as strategic risk, operational risk, financial risk, safety at workplace risk and information safety risk.

Therefore, the Company shall prepare for the unexpected situation which may happen in order to reduce any
risk of which may effect to the Company’s goal and operation. The Company has established the Risk Man-
agement Committee comprising of Senior Executive officers and Executive officers from various departments
and the President serves as the Chairman to evaluate and analyze risk including the trend of potential event

that may occur and affect to the company. Details of risks are as follows:

1. Operational Risk

1.1 Raw Materials

The Company’s main raw materials are steel sheet, aluminum sheet and plastic resin which have been
imported by suppliers. Therefore, in order to reduce the risk of pricing and lacking of raw material in the future,
the Company has followed up the raw material price closely, also, cooperate with the suppliers to produce
and deliver the raw material on time. Furthermore, the Company has managed the proper inventory level to
avoid the lack of raw material as well as continuously maintain good relationship with the suppliers of steel,
aluminum and plastic resin. In addition, the Company will search for new suppliers and substitute raw material
which is cheaper by coordinating with suppliers for raw material development, useful information sharing to
serve with customer demand, from both Asian and European countries to avoid such risk. Raw material quality
is another significant element which the Company pays significant attention to. Every raw material has to pass
the inspection scheme based on quality standard before being process. This scheme is used for reducing risks

of production loss came from poor quality raw materials.

1.2 Finished Products

As our finished products being the component of our customer products, the Company has to ensure
on products’ quality and reduce risks of delivering poor quality products to customers. To achieve such goal,
the Company uses Video Inspection Device (VID) to monitor the products’ quality. With the VID system, the
poor quality products will be automatically rejected from production line. Nowadays VID system is run smoothly
with satisfactory operation result. The Company has extended the system covering all production lines and

also developed to make more efficiency and accurately.

1.3 Packaging technology

Production technology and design of beverage container has continuously been developed in order
to reduce production cost as well as to adjust to the changing consumers’ way of life. The Company has
closely monitored the changing of product trend and always recognized the importance of the development
in both production technology and product design in order to continuously satisfy the market demand with

strong technical support from Toyo Seikan Company Limited and Nippon Closures Company Limited, Japan.
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Moreover, the Company has improved the colour printing technology to be faster and higher resolution to any
packages in order to support the customers’ needs better and cope with their sale promotion plans. These

continuously developments produce more variety of the Company’s products dealing with customers demand.

2. Strategy Risk

2.1 Trade Liberalization and Integration

According to the Free Trade Policy, especially Asean Economic Community: AEC, will start in year
2015, a single market and production base, free labor and product migration, will increase high competition
of domestic market due to the flood of foreign competitors. However, the Company has prepared for such
effects by improving the product quality, controlling production process closely, increasing the efficiency of
production and cost, joining more activities with customers for better relationship as well as expanding widely

export market mainly in South-East Asia, Australia and New Zealand.

3. Financial Risk

3.1 Foreign Exchange Rate

The Company imports raw materials and machinery from abroad including exports finished products
as well. However, the fluctuation of the exchange rate might affect the revenue and cost of the company. To
reduce such risk, the Company use Natural Hedging to maximize of the same currency. Moreover, the Company
has covered by using forward contract. Also, closely follows up the exchange rate and reports the impact to

the management.

4. Occupational Safety Risk

4.1 Accidental Risks

In the operation of the Company, the machinery and equipment are needed to use for producing and
transporting products.Simultaneously, the Company realizes the importance of the safety in the workplace for
both employee and business. The incurred accidents may result in loss of employee’s health and damage of the
Company’s assets. Accordingly, the Company has appointed the Safety, Occupational Health and Environmental
Committee to perform their duties in safety and assess the potential risks in the workplace, Furthermore, to
encourage safety awareness for the employee concerning the reducing and eliminating the source of accidents
for example, applying noise absorbent material to reduce the risk of hearing loss, applying heat insulator above

high temperature machine to reduce heat which make the temperature warmer in the workplace.
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Shareholders

1. Registered Capital and Paid-up Capital:

As of 31 December 2013, the Company accounted for the registered capital of 528,000,000 Baht which
had been paid up in the amount of 528,000,000 Baht, divided into 52,000,012 ordinary shares and 799,988
preferred shares with par value of 10 Baht each. After the 2007 Annual General Shareholders Meeting, held
on 23 April 2007 had a resolution to increase the registered capital of the Company of another 800,000 Baht
from the existing registered capital and paid up as of 31 December 2006 of 520,000,000 Baht by offering the
allocation of 800,000 new preferred shares to the existing shareholders and in case any shareholders waived
their subscription right, the Company reserved the right to allocate such shares to Japan Crown Cork Co., Ltd.
at the offering price of 76 Baht each totaling 60,800,000 Baht. The proceeds from the offer of new preferred
shares were used for investment project to expand production capacity and being the Company’s working

capital.

Preferred shares

In addition to the above rights, the preferred shares shall have the same rights and benefits as the

ordinary shares. The preferential rights of the preferred shares are as follows:

1. Each preferred share is entitled to dividends at the same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht

1.50 for each preferred share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative.
2. Each preferred share has one vote.

3. Each preferred share is convertible into an ordinary share at the ratio of 1:1. A holder may exercise
the right to convert the preferred shares to ordinary shared on the last business day of each
month. If that day in a non-business day, the exercise must be postponed to the next business

day.

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
i Annual Report 2013



2. Shareholders

Details of top ten shareholders as listed in the share

registered as of December 31, 2013 are as follows:

Share Amount

Name of Shareholders ** Nationality Ordinary Bl t‘)l'yp.e o
. . Total % to total SSigess
1. Nippon Closures Co., Ltd.' Japanese 19,071,292 772,046 19,843,338 37.582 Packaging
2. Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd? Japanese 5,280,000 - 5,280,000 10.000 Packaging
3. Boonrawd Brewery Co., Ltd’ Thai 3,934,488 - 3,934,488 7.452 Beverages
4. ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd.* Thai 3,768,316 - 3,768,316 7137 Beverages
5. Mr. Vinai Klongprakij Thai 1,499,700 - 1,499,700 2.840 -
6. Serm Suk Plc’ Thai 1,057,742 - 1,057,742 2.003 Beverages
7. Green Spot Co., Ltd’ Thai 1,000,000 11,230 1,011,230 1.915 Beverages
8. Mr. Supachai Suthipongchai Thai 890,000 - 890,000 1.686 -
9. Best Fortune Property and Loan Fund’ Thai 812,900 - 812,900 1.540 nvestment in
another company

10. Ms. Risara  Klongprakij Thai 794,400 - 794,400 1.505 -
Remarks :

The major shareholder of Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. (100%)
The major shareholder of Toyo Seikan Co., Ltd. is Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. (100%)

The major shareholders of Boonrawd Brewery Co., Ltd. are Mr. Piya Bhirombhakdi (13.2%), Mr. Vapee Bhirombhakdi
(12.7%), Mr. Santi Bhirombhakdi (12.3%), and Mr. Vudha Bhirombhakdi (12.1%)

4. The major shareholders of ThaiNamthip Co. Ltd. are Coco-Cola Export Corporation (40.8%) and Jootee Tin
Dredging Co., Ltd. (10.2%)

5. The major shareholders of Serm Suk Plc. are Thai Beverage Logistic Co. Ltd. (64.7%) SS National Logistics

Co., Ltd. (326%) (The information as of March 13, 2013)
6. The major shareholder of Green Spot Co., Ltd. is Wattana Sophonpanich Co., Ltd. (56.6%)

7. Best Fortune Property and Loan Fund managed by Krung Thai Asset Management PCL.

*k

promoting investor investment, particularly international investors, in order to invest in common stock of listed companies without

Excluding shareholders in Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Stock Exchange of Thailand with the objective of

being restricted by foreign shareholding limit which does not have the right to vote at meetings of listed companies.

3. Other securities

- None

usyN whdu 9nm- (UMsu)
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Dividend Payout Policy

The dividend policy of the company is to pay not more than 50 percent of annual net profit. Each
preferred share is entitled to dividend at the same rate as each ordinary share is, plus Baht 1.50 for each
preferred share. However, the dividend payment will be subject to net profit, cash flow and the company
investment responsibility including the legal obligation and other necessities. The past dividend payments of

the company are as follows:

Operation results
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013*
Net Profit (Million Baht) 216.67 253.68 210.69 289.74 337.72
Dividend for ordinary share (Baht) 1.00 1.20 1.00 1.50 1.75
Dividend for preferred share (Baht) 2.50 2.70 2.50 3.00 3.25
Percent of net profit (%) 24.92 25.45 25.63 27.75 27.72

Remark : * Dividend rate for operation results of 2013 will be considered approving by the shareholders at the Annual

General Meeting of 2014.
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Management Structure

The Company’s structure of management comprises of

1. The Board of Directors comprising Independent directors, non-executive directors and executive

directors

1.1 The Audit Committee

1.2 The Risk Management Committee

2. The Management

1. The Board of Directors

e The Structure of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors stated in the company’s Articles of Association consists of at least 7 directors
and not more than 15 directors. Not less than half of the total number of directors must have residence in
the Kingdom. The directors must hold qualifications in accordance with the regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and not have any characteristics prohibited
by the SEC and Public Company Act. It presently consists of 14 directors which 2 of these members are

executive directors.

As of December 31, 2013, the Board of Directors comprised of 14 members and Ms. Napaporn

Temeesrisuk, the Company Secretary Manager, was the secretary to the Board, detail as follows:

NAME - SURNAME POSITION
1. Mr. Pong Sarasin Chairman
2. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Director
3. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director
5. Associate Prof.Dr. Sudhabodi Sattabusya Director
6. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director
7. Mr. Masutaka Hosono Director

8. Mr. Satit

Chanjavanakul

Independent Director and the Audit Committee

9. Mr. Dhitivute

Bulsook

Director

10. Associate Prof.Dr.Suwimon Keeratipibul

Independent Director

11. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director
12. Mr. Tsurusaburo ~ Okamura Director
13. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Independent Director and the Audit Committee
14. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director
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Directors with signatory rights on behalf of the Company

Directors with signatory rights on behalf of the Company are Mr. Pong Sarasin, Mr. Hirofumi Miki, Mr.

Akiyoshi Toba, Mr. Sudhabodi Sattabusya and Mr.Tsurusaburo Okamura. The any two of these five authorized

directors must sign jointly with the Company’s seal affixed.

Scope of Authority and Duties of the Board of Directors

1.

Supervises and manages company operations in accordance with the company objectives, Articles of
Association, and the resolutions of Shareholders’ Meeting.

Establishes or considers and approve vision, missions, strategy, goals and business policies of the
Company. The Board is also responsible for monitoring implementation by management in accordance
with the approved policies, plans and budgets with efficiency and effectiveness.

May appoint other persons to operate the Company’s business under the supervision of the Board.
The Board may also appoint such persons with the authority and timeframe as deemed appropriate
by the Board. The Board of Directors reserves the right to cancel, revoke, change or amend such
authority.

Considers and approves the responsibilities of any Committee and any significant changes made to
its operations as deemed appropriate for the benefit of the Company.

Thoroughly considers any conflict of interests .The consideration of the transactions with conflict of
interest are conducted for the best interest of the Company and shareholders .The person who has
interest in the transaction are not be able to participate in decision making process and/or approval
of any transactions.

Establishes or approves a written corporate governance policy for the Company.
Ensuring that the Company has effective internal control and internal audit systems.

Considers remuneration for the Board within the limit approved by shareholders.
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In 2013, the Board of Directors attended the total of 7 meetings and the Annual General Meeting of

Shareholders as follows:

BOARD MEETING
ATTENDING 2013
ATTENDANCE / THE
NAME - SURNAME POSITION ANNUAL GENERAL
TOTAL MEETINGS*
MEETING
(TIMES)
1. Mr. Pong Sarasin Chairman (4 7/7
2. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Director v 2/7
Independent Director and
3. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn v 6/7
Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director v 7/7
5. Associate Prof.Dr. Sudhabodi Sattabusya Director v 7/7
6. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director v 3/7
7. Mr. Masutaka Hosono Director v 2/7
Independent Director and
8. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul v 7/7
the Audit Committee
9. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director v 4/7
10. Associate Prof.Dr.Suwimon Keeratipibul Independent Director - 4/7
11. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director v 7/7
12. Mr. Tsurusaburo Okamura Director v 7/7
Independent Director and
13. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra - 4/7
the Audit Committee
14. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba Director v 7/7

Notes :

The Board meeting attendance / the total meetings was presented either in amount of times each member

attended the meetings in 2013 or since the members have been in the position of the Board during the year

as the case maybe comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2013.

The current number and position of the Company’s Directors reflects the suitability and equity of each

shareholder groups’ investment stake. The majority of the Directors are not executives, in order to preserve a

balance of power and encourage management credibility.
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Directors representing from major shareholders listed as follows:

Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd.*
1. Mr. Hirofumi Miki

Nippon Closures Company Limited

1. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro
2. Mr. Masutaka Hosono
3. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba

4. Mr. Tsurusaburo Okamura

Toyo Seikan Company Limited
1. Mr. Susumu Yamada
Notes: * Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. is the major shareholder of Nippon Closures Company Limited
and Toyo Seikan Company Limited.
1.1 The Audit Committee*

As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s Audit Committee comprised of 3 independent directors and
the Internal Audit Office Manager as the secretary. In 2013, a total of 4 Audit Committee’s meetings were
convened with the attendance listed as follows:

THE TOTAL NUMBER OF
NAME - SURNAME POSITION ATTENDANCE/ THE TOTAL
OF MEETINGS (TIMES)**

1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn Chairman of the Audit Committee 4/4
2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Member of Audit Committee 4/4
3. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Member of Audit Committee 2/4
4. Ms. Wannapa Somprasit Secretary to the Audit Committee 4/4
Notes;

The Audit Committee has their term for three years, started from November 8, 2011, and will complete their
term in year 2014.

** The Audit Committee meeting attendance / the total meetings was presented either in amount of times each
member attended the meetings in 2013 or since the members have been in the position of the Audit Committee

during the year as the case maybe comparing to the total of meetings that was held in 2013.
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Scope of Authority and Duties of the Audit Committee

The Board of Directors has approved and scoped the authority and duties of the Audit Committee as
follows:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate by
coordinating with auditor, the internal audit office and the relevant management.

2. To review the Company’s internal control system and internal audit system to be suitable and efficient, to
determine the internal audit unit’s independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer, dismissal,
develop and performance appraisal of internal audit manager.

3. To review the Company’s compliance with the laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission
concerning, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act.

4. To review the Connected Transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure
that they are in compliance with the laws and the Exchange’s regulations, and are reasonable, accurate,
complete, transparent and for the highest benefit of the Company.

5. To consider, select and nominate an independent person to be the Company’s auditor, and to propose
the remuneration of Company’s auditor to the Board of Directors, to attend a non-management meeting
with an auditor at least once a year

6. To review and follow the appropriateness and effectiveness of the Company’s risk management.

7. To approve the Audit Committee’s regulation before proposing the approved regulation to the Board of
Directors for approval.

8. To review the undertaking of the internal audit office as follows:

8.1 Independence

8.2 Appropriateness of its duties and responsibilities
8.3 Approve the audit plan, budget and manpower
8.4 Report the audit results.

8.5 Problem or limit in audit process

9. To prepare a report of Audit Committee’s Corporate Governance, and to report in the Company’s annual
report.

10. To report the performance of the Audit Committee to the Board of Directors of the Company by a quarterly
basis

11. To perform any other duties assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company with approval from the
Audit Committee thereto.
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The report of Suspicious Circumstance and Significance

Apart from the mentioned Authority and Duties, the Audit Committee also reports the suspicious
circumstance which has significance as follows:

1. Inspect the matter informed by the Company’s auditor in case of the auditor found the suspicious
circumstance that director, management or any person responsible for the Company’s operation commits
an offence under the rules of Securities and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E2551 and report the result of preliminary
inspection to Securities and Exchange Commission Office and the auditor within thirty days after received
by the auditor.

2. During undertake the duties, if the Audit Committee find the suspicious act or transaction which has
significant effect on the Company’s financial position and operation result, the Audit Committee shall report
to the Company’s Board of Directors to remedy the matter under the period of time accepted by the
Audit Committee as follows:

1. A conflict of interest transaction

2. A corruption or an important unusual matter or a fault in the internal audit system

3. An infringement of laws and regulations of Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and the Public Company Act.

In case that the Board of Directors or the management fails to remedy aforesaid matters, any audit
committee member shall report to the Securities and Exchange Commission Thailand or the Stock Exchange
of Thailand

The responsibility of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is responsible to the Board of Directors in carrying duties and responsibilities
assigned by the Board of Directors while the whole Board of Directors is responsible to all of activities
participating outsiders.

1.2 Risk Management Committee

The company has established the Risk Management Committee as a sub-committee of the Management
comprised of Senior executive officers and executive officers from various departments and the President
served as the Chairman in order to ensure that the Company has managed efficiently and shall achieves the
objectives as well as to prepare for the incident which may occur in the future and affect to the Company’s
operation.

Scope of duties of the Risk Management Committee

1. To determine policies, objectives, frameworks and strategies concerning risk management.
2. To set content and criteria in considering all types of the Company’s risks.

3. To communicate with all departments regarding the policies or specified measures which need to be
implemented.

4. To analyze and assess all risks, trends, or incidents which may occur and has influence to the Company.
5. To approve risk management plan, supervise, monitor and also evaluate outcomes

6. To periodically report outcomes for acknowledgment risk situations.
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2. The Management

The Executive of the Company as of December 31, 2013 comprises of 7 members presented as

follows:
NAME - SURNAME POSITION
1. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba President
2. Mr. Tsurusaburo =~ Okamura Senior Vice President - Technical
3. Mrs. Suphasri Sutanadhan Vice President - Finance and Accounting
4. Mr. Ruyj Tantsetthi Vice President - Plant
5. Mrs. Siriporn Lawattanatrakul Vice President - Sales
6. Mr. Yoshihiro Kaitsuka Vice President - Technic
7. Mr. Thongchai Srisook Personnel Manager

The Duties of the Management

1. Manages the operations according to the vision, mission, strategies, policies, plans and goals approved by
the Board of Directors, the Articles of Association of the Company, and resolutions passed by the Board
of Directors’ Meeting and Shareholders’ Meeting.

2. Manages the operations according to the Corporate Governance Policy approved by the Board of
Directors.

3. Prepares annual plan and budget for approval form the Board of Directors and strictly control the operations
and budget expenditure according to the approved plans and report progresses and operating results of
the company to the Board of Directors’ Meeting on regularly.

The Board of Directors and the management has no illegal records in the past 10 years before
submitting Form 56-1 concerning information disclosure.

3. The Company Secretary and The Secretary to the Board of Directors

The Company has established the Company Secretary Office comprising of qualified staff with
appropriate experience to give information, legal suggestion and related regulations to the Board of Directors
to perform its duty, and also coordinate all departments to conform with the resolution passed by the Board
in order to comply with Good Corporate Governance principle. The Board of Directors Meeting No.4/2008 as
of June 24, 2008 passed the resolution to appoint Ms. Napaporn Temeesrisuk, the Company Secretary Office
Manager as the Company Secretary and also appointed as the Secretary to the Board of Directors on August
26, 2008.
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The duties of the Company Secretary and the Secretary to the Board of the Directors are as
follows:

1. To coordinate the schedule for the Board of Directors’ meeting all year round and the date for Annual
General Meeting of shareholders as well as inform the Board in advance.

2. To prepare the Meeting agenda, documents and deliver to the Board of Directors together with the
meeting notice.

3. To prepare the Shareholders’ meeting, agenda, documents and deliver to the shareholders together with
the meeting notice. In addition, manage the meeting smoothly and to comply with laws.

4. To attend the meeting and prepare minutes of the Board of Directors’ and the shareholders’ meeting,
taking important matter, questions and useful suggestions during the meeting.

5. To follow up the operation to conform with the resolutions of the Board of Directors’ and the Shareholders’
meeting and report to the Board periodically.

6. To give information or suggestions to the Board of the Directors and the management to perform their
duties in compliance with the laws and regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand including the best practice of the Listed Company concerning the good governance.

7. To prepare Form 56-1 concerning the information disclosure and the annual report with the correct and
complete information complying with the regulations of the Securities Exchange Commission and the
Stock Exchange of Thailand as well as deliver to all related organizations and shareholders (The annual
report only).

8. To prepare the Director’s profile and registration which have been corrected and updated.

9. To submit a copy of the report concerning the interest related the Board of the Directors, the Executives,
and other related persons to the Chairman and the Chairman of the Audit Committee within 7 days since
the report has been received.

10. To keep the documents as follow in complete, systematic, and simple-to-examine manner

- Meeting notices and minutes of the Board of Directors’ meeting and the Shareholders’ meeting including
all meeting documents

- Annual report

- Director registration

- Report of Information concerning the interest related to the Board of Directors, the Executives, and
other related person.

11. To give the Company’s information to shareholders, investors, and analysts. To coordinate or set up the
meeting for all related parties periodically.

12. To perform any other acts as specified in the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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4. Directors and Management Remuneration

Monetary Remuneration

1.) The Board of Directors’ Remuneration

In 2013,

retainer fee and meeting attendance

the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders held on of April 23, 2013 has approved the
remuneration of the total 14 directors in amount of Baht 3,500,000 for the

fee of the Board and the Audit Committee. Year of 2013, the retainer fee and meeting allowances of the
Board of Directors for 14 directors amounted of Baht 3,030,000 described as follows:

Retainer fee

Attendance Fee

Name of Directors Position
(Baht/Year) (Baht/Year)*
1. Mr. Pong Sarasin Chairman 360,000 210,000
2. Mr. Hirofumi Miki Director No Receiving No Receiving
Independent Director and
3. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn 240,000 120,000
Chairman of the Audit Committee
4. Mr. Dhep Vongvanich Independent Director 240,000 140,000
5. Associate Prof.Dr.Sudhabodi
Director 240,000 140,000
Sattabusya
6. Mr. Yasuo Tsujihiro Director No Receiving No Receiving
Independent Director and
7. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul 240,000 140,000
The Audit Committee
8. Mr. Dhitivute Bulsook Director 240,000 80,000
9. Associate Prof.Dr.Suwimon
Independent Director 240,000 80,000
Keeratipibul
10. Mr. Tsurusaburo Okamura® Director No Receiving -
Independent Director and
11. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra 240,000 80,000
The Audit Committee
12. Mr. Susumu Yamada Director No Receiving No Receiving
13. Mr. Masutaka Hosono Director No Receiving No Receiving
14. Mr. Akiyoshi Toba* Director No Receiving -
Total 2,040,000 990,000

Remarks

* The Directors who also reserve the Company’s management will not receive the attendance fee.

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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2) The Audit Committee’s Remuneration

In 2013, a total of 4 Audit Committee’s meetings were convened. The attendance fee amounted of
Baht 220,000 the details of which can be described as follows:

THE TOTAL NUMBER
MEETING
OF ATTENDANCE/
NAME - SURNAME POSITION* ATTENDANCE FEE
THE TOTAL OF
(BAHT)

MEETINGS (TIMES)

Chairman of the
1. Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn 4/4 100,000
Audit Committee

2. Mr. Satit Chanjavanakul Member of Audit Committee 4/4 80,000
3. Mr. Pongpanu Svetarundra Member of Audit Committee 2/4 40,000
Remarks

*  They have been appointed by the Board of Directors since November 8, 2011 with the term for three

years and will complete their term in 2014.

3.) The Management's Remuneration

In 2013, The Management‘s remuneration which included 4 executives relatively under the President
and any persons equally assigned to the same rank of those executives, for a total of 6 executives amounted
of Baht 15,166,628.37 the details as follows:

Year 2013 Year 2012 Year 2011
i Number of Amount Number of Amount Number of Amount
Remuneration
Executives (Baht) Executives (Baht) Executives (Baht)
(person) (person) (person)
Salary, Annual Bonus,
and Retirement 6 14,895,584.37 5 17,983,648 5 19,614,419
Compensation
Provident Fund 1 271,044 2 330,129 2 796,379
Total 15,166,628.37 18,313,777 20,410,798

However, the Company considered the executives as permanent employees and are obliged to be

responsible in their own function and line.

4) Other Remuneration

- None
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5. Employees

As of 31 December 2013, the Company had 891 employees.

In 2013, the Company paid the compensation to employees totaling 368,021,765.88 baht in the form of
salary, bonus, attendance reward, overtime, and other welfares. The Company had contributed to the Provident
Fund for the year 2013 in the amount of 16,161,940.60 baht.

Provident Fund of the Company

The Company had founded the provident fund comply with ministerial regulations no.162 B.E. 2526 aim
to promote employee’s long term savings. This fund will help the employee to gather their own savings for
use when retire or resign from the Company, subsequently the Company had registered the fund to be under
Provident Fund Act. B.E. 2530. For the employee’s cumulative gathering which will deduct from employee’s
salary, employee has a right to choose from ratio percentage to salary depends on year of service. In addition,
employee can choose themselves the proper investment plan while the Company shall contribute to the fund
by this details:-

Year of service Contribution ratio ( percentage to salary )
1-6 5
7-9 75

10 years over 10

In case that the employee register to the fund before 1 January 2003, the Company shall contribute
when complete 7 and 10 year of services.

As of 31 December 2014, the Company’s Provident Fund has a total contribution equal to 277,952,208.57
which comprised of

1. Crown Seal Public Company Limited registered fund, having 343 members included management,
totaling 111,611,885.36 Baht

2. The registered K-Master Pooled fund, Crown Seal Public Company Limited only, having 33 members
included management, totaling 13,584,369.77 Baht.

3. The registered K-Master Pooled fund — share mixed not over 25%, Crown Seal Public Company Limited

only, having 413 members included management, totaling 153,755,953.44 Baht.

Employee dispute in the past 3 years

- None

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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Personnel Development Policy

Human resources are deemed to be the key factors in carrying on the Company’s operations. The
Company realizes that human resources development is the worthiest and most sustainable investment
compared with the other category of the investments. This is because of the reason that the organizational
success relies on the personnel potentials as the significant matter. Any organization having human resources
of high caliber of competency, righteousness and ethics would certainly be able to create the advantage on
the competitiveness and lead the organization to success in accordance with the required and sustainable
goal. The Company has by far set a wish and given importance on human resources development in order
to make the Company’s personnel both good and smart men and women at all times.

The Company has a policy on the development of all levels of employees in order to enable them
to gain knowledge and skills in systematic and continuous performances by implementing the Annual Training
Plan consisting of the basic training, skills on the executions of a specific work and general knowledge necessary for
use in performing duties: such as; management knowledge and skills, which, in 2013, the Company provided
supports to employees in the positions where the use of English is necessary and the employees in supervisory level
to receive more skill development training on the use of English in preparation for backing up the entrance
of ASEAN Economic Community (AEC) and world economic growth towards ASEAN. Such training would also
enable the employees to increase their knowledge and open the opportunity for them to develop their potentials

for the progress in their future occupations.

The Company has adopted various management systems for applications in the Company: such as;
5 Sor. System and Total Productive Management (TPM), etc., by giving the importance to cleanly environmental
working condition with an orderly manner. The employees could do their works with safety and happiness;

look after and maintain the equipment and machines more systematically.

In addition, the Company has established channel for direct communications with the employees by
holding the Management-Meets-Employees meeting, at least, 3 times a year in order to give the employees
the explanations on the operation results including the ways on the Company’s management as well as the
opportunity in exchanging ideas and opinions between the Management and employees in order to lead to
the improvements, developments and creations of good relations between the Management and all employees

within the Organization.

In 2013, the Company organized the trainings to give explanations on the Company Code of Ethics
continuously in order to enable the employees to have correct understanding on and properly observe such
Code of Ethics in the same direction which, in this respect, emphasis was placed on the observations in
compliance with the Company Code of Ethics in 8 points including the channel in lodging complaints and
actions in responding to the complaints when received in the case where a performance in violation of the

Code of Ethics of the Company has been discovered.

In 2013, the overall training courses consisted of 118 in-house training courses with 2,619 attendances
and 59 off-house training courses with 117 attendances respectively. Total expenditure amount to 1,605,107.15
Baht

Moreover, the Company also provided the overseas business trip to observe other peer industrial operation.
The Objectives are to cross experience and share knowledge in order to enhance our business overview and

to develop our management systematic continually.
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Good Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Policy

The Board of Directors is committed to operate the business in accordance with the principles of
good corporate governance and guidelines of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. The Board of Directors believes
that corporate governance is an important factor that will bring not only success to its business, in terms of
effectiveness, disclosure and transparency, but also maximum benefit to its shareholders and fairness to all
stakeholders operations , and to nurture a sustainable growth to the firm. The Board of Directors has established
the Corporate governance policy being the guideline of business operation for directors, executives and employees
of the Company. It has been disclosed on the Company’s website www.crowseal.co.th, at the Investor Relation

section.

In 2012, The Corporate Governance of Listed Companies Survey Committee has developed the
criteria of the survey to comply with ASEAN CG Scorecard and best practice of international standards. Thus,
the Company is committed to the revised principles of good corporate governance by The Stock Exchange
of Thailand, to attain the highest international standards of good corporate governance, which are stated in 5

categories namely:

Rights of Shareholders
Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
Role of Stakeholders

Disclosure and Transparency

o K~ 0D

Responsibilities of the Board

1. Rights of Shareholders

The Board of Directors recognizes shareholder rights by encouraging them to exercise their rights and
avoid violating those rights. ; basic rights of shareholders, right to obtain relevant and adequate information
of the company in a timely manner and on a regular basis, right to participate and vote in the shareholder
meetings on any transactions that affect the company. The Board of Directors shall operates not only in
accordance with the principles of corporate governance for listed companies of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
but also realize to other rights of shareholders, which are more than specified in laws, listed in the company

website www.crownseal.co.th at the Investor Relations section.

1.1 Basic shareholder rights

The Board of Directors recognizes the basic shareholder rights. We believe that our best effort to
exercise all policies and practices of the rights of shareholders mentioned herein are strictly complied with
fairness to all stakeholders, and also relevant rules, regulations, shall ensure our shareholders to rely on and

be confident to invest with the company.
The company shall encourage and facilitates all shareholders to exercise their rights as follows:

e Rights to buy or sell shares

e Rights to receive adequate information in a timely manner and in a form appropriate for making
decisions

e Rights to receive share certificates and rights to transfer shares

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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e Rights to participate and vote in the shareholder meetings, and make decisions on any changes
in importance policy of the Company or any issues that needed to be approved by shareholders’
meeting such as amendments to the articles of association or memorandum of association of the
company, capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.

e Rights to elect or remove members of the board, appoint the external auditor

e Rights to express their opinions and ask questions related to the Company’s operation.

e Rights to vote by proxy

e In case the Company operation result has profits and carries no accumulated loss, the shareholders
have rights to share in profits of the company.

1.2 Shareholder Meetings

In 2013, the Board of Directors has not only operated in accordance with the basic rights of
shareholders, but also supported the additional acts for shareholders as follows:

e Schedule for shareholders’ meeting

The Board of Directors has a duty to call an Annual General Meeting once a year within 4 months
from the end of fiscal year of the company and it may call an Extraordinary Meeting to discuss any other
important matters, which affects on the benefit of the shareholders. In 2013, the Company had called the
Annual General Meeting on April 23, 2013 at The Sukhothai Hotel, 13/3 South Sathorn Road, Tungmahamek
Sub District, Sathorn District, Bangkok.

The meeting place is considered on basis of the most convenient for transportation, and the size of
meeting room is also suitable for the numbers of shareholders.

e The Invitation notice to the meeting

The Board of Directors recognizes the rights of shareholders to receive adequate information in a
timely basis and in a form appropriate for making decisions. The invitation notice to the meeting which contains
adequate information, such as, agenda which will be clearly defined whether which agenda is for the information
or for the consideration purpose. The supporting documents for each agenda will include the opinions of the
Board to facilitate the decision making as well. In 2013, an invitation of the meeting was sent at least 14 days
prior to the meeting. The invitation notice and supporting documents were posted on the company’s website,
announced via the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website to inform the shareholders in advance for 30 days
before the meeting, and also announced in the daily newspapers consecutively for 3 days, not less than 3
days prior to the meetings. The Company’s telephone number was also provided for any enquiry may need.

e Proxy to attend and vote in shareholders meeting.

When shareholders could not attend a meeting in person, the Company shall encourage the exercising
of attending and voting rights by shareholders, at least by appointing their proxy or the Company’s Independent
Directors to vote on their behalf. The details of 5 Independent Directors of the Company are entirely attached
to the Notice of Annual General Meeting for their considerations. The shareholders can direct their vote guideline
by fill in the proxy “form KOR” which has been sent to the shareholders as an attached document with the
invitation notice, or the shareholders can download it from the Company’s website.

; SIEUUSOU 2556
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e Preparation for shareholders meeting and Registration.

The Company provides one hour registration prior to convening the meeting, a computerized registration
and vote forms shall be facilitated properly, as well as the revenue stamp shall also be free serviced,

e Attending shareholders meeting by the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of the shareholder meetings, all directors shall attend
every shareholder meeting. The shareholders shall be given an opportunity to make comments and inquires by
the Chairman. The minutes of shareholder meetings shall be prepared where all enquiry and important comments
shall be recorded. In 2013, 12 directors from the total of 14 directors, all executives, legal representatives and
external auditors attended the annual general meeting of shareholders in order to receive shareholders’ opinion
and answer their questions.

1.3 An Extraordinary Meeting.

Apart from the Annual General Meeting, the Board of Directors may convene an interim meeting called
“an extraordinary meeting” to discuss any other matter proposed for approval by the shareholders. In addition,
shareholders may request in writing to the Board of Directors to call for an extraordinary meeting by specifying
the matters to be considered. The Board of Directors shall call the extraordinary meeting as requested by
shareholders within 1 month after receiving the notice of shareholders.

2. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Company recognizes the equitable treatment of shareholders in order to encourage the confidence
of shareholders to invest in the company.

The Company has encouraged equitable treatment of shareholders as follows:

2.1 The right of the votes in the meeting, given by the company depends on the number of company’s
shares- one share one vote.

2.2 The Company’s website has been used for facilitating shareholders to reach the Company’s
information thoroughly, adequately and timely. The minor shareholders shall also have an opportunity to propose
an agenda for shareholders meeting and nominate any person to be elected as the director of the board in
advance, the criteria and process of which has been publicized on the Company’s website. Telephone service
with Company Secretary Officer shall also be provided for shareholders or interested person to call for more
information.

2.3 The matters discussed at the shareholder meetings shall be in the sequence as given in the
invitation notice, any matter which is not noticed prior to shareholders, shall not be discussed in the meeting.

2.4 The shareholders have the right to give all of the votes they have to an individual, or a group
for an election of the Company’s directors. The votes of each shareholder could not allocate more or less to
nominees. The score voted shall be put in order from the highest score down to the latest ones, the individuals
who get higher score shall be appointed as directors as per the number of director(s) to be elected in that
time.

2.5 The Company encourages voting by use of a polling card for each matter in the agenda. A polling
card especially used when shareholders wish to vote ‘No’, or do not wish to make their votes. This practice
also brings more transparency and be inspected for inspection.

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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26 The Company has a preventive measure of unfair using insider information by related persons.
The directors and executives include their spouse and minor children who have the change in the Company’s
shares owner they have to immediately inform to the Company Secretary Officer before the information shall
be reported further to The Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission within 3 working days from the
date of transaction, sell-purchase or transfer. In addition, the directors and executives or insider department,
who are closed to the Company’s internal data, are supposed not to make advantage for themselves or their
relatives and not to disclose any information to outsider or unrelated persons before the important information
is publicized.

3. Role of Stakeholders

The Company recognizes with due care to the rights of stakeholders as well as other concerned parties
including shareholders, customers, trading partners, competitors, creditors, employees and therefore communities
and environment where the Company operates and the society at large. The Company shall set a clear policy
on fair treatment for each and every stakeholder. The rights of stakeholders that are established by laws or
through mutual agreements are to be respected.

Shareholders : The Company is committed to present itself as a high professional representative
to maximize benefit and satisfaction for our shareholders. Conducting business
efficiently with transparency is able to create trust and confidence amongst its
shareholders by considering the Company’s long term growth and appropriate
levels of sustained returns.

Customers : The Company is committed to maximize satisfaction to our customers with
right-to-order, high quality products at reasonable price and on-time delivery
service. The Company shall be a proactive agent who is wiling to give consultation,
solve problems and complaint, keep strictly our customer’s confidential and
business contract.

Trading Partners : The Company shall treat our trading partners equally and honestly in
accordance with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade law. The
commitment to disclose all necessary information, be transparency and fair,
in all aspects of business transactions including purchasing procedure.

Competitors : The Company have commitment to play fair game of business competition
in accordance with the frame of rules and regulations as well as trade law.
The Company encourages fair and free-trading policies, not monopoly. The
Company will not use the illegal information and defame competitors.

Creditors : The Company has commitment to follow the financial contracts we have with
our creditors.

Employees : The Company realizes the importance of the Company’s employees. All
employees shall be treated equally and fairly without discrimination on race,
religious or gender, in accordance with Labor Law, rules and regulations,
receive appropriated compensation as well as the safety work place and
sanitary. In addition, Human Resources Development plan has been invested
for them continuously along with the Company’s business development.
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Community & Environment . The Company realizes the importance of natural resources and environment, thus
the policies on environmental control management, has been strictly conducted
to ensure reasonable usage of all resources and comply with relevant laws,
rules and regulations. Pollution prevention is also the important issue which
the Company concerned in every step of works, in order to prevent the effect
on all staff and communities. Also, in order to support the mentioned policy,
the company has preceded the Corporate Social Responsibility activity, CSR
DAY, to promote the employee of the organization about CSR.

4. Disclosure and Transparency

The Board of Directors ensures that all important information relevant to the Company, both financial
and non-financial : corporate governance policy and environmental policy are normally publicized via The Stock
Exchange of Thailand and company’s website, annual statements (form 56-1) and annual reports. Furthermore,
the Company has designated various media and activities, the shareholders, analyst and investors can asked
for the Company visit or having a meeting with Executives/Senior Executive Officers timely, to disseminate
corporate information to outsiders such as shareholders and investors. In addition, shareholders are able to
reach to information needed through calling to shareholder-administrated unit concerned in order to help them
understand the Company and its business.

The Company recognizes that all information, is disclosed accurately, completely, transparently on
a timely basis that are trustworthy and adequately for shareholders to make decision, so the Company has
appointed the Company Secretary Office Manager, Company Secretary Office, to be responsible for and perform
‘Investor relations function’ with care to communicate with outsiders such as shareholders, investors, analysts.

Company’s news and information has been communicated via the following channels:

e The Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website is www.set.or.th
e Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s website is www.sec.or.th
e The Crown Seal Plc.’s website is www.crownseal.co.th

e Company and Executives Visit Activity.
e Contact directly via e-mail and telephone.

The shareholders and persons who need more information can contact directly to:

Contact Person . Company Secretary Office Manager

Address : Crown Seal Public Company Limited
5 Soi Rangsit-Nakornnayok 46, Tumbol prachatipat
Umphur Thunyaburi, Pathumtani

Tel. © + 66 (0) 2533-0450 ext. 638
Fax. © + 66 (0) 2974-1114
E-mail : napaporn@crownseal.co.th

Inside Information Control

The Company shall determinate for executives and staff especially staff who are data users, not to
disclose or publicize internal information or data for the sake of one’s own benefit, buy or sell shares, transfer
data for buying or selling shares. Internal data control has to be strictly managed to maximize disclosure and
transparency, including fairness of corporate.
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Internal Control

The Board of Directors shall ensure an effective and sufficient internal control system that covers every
aspect of its operation; financial operations, corporate performance. The Internal Audit Office is established
to ensure that all operation units of the Company are in compliance with operating procedures, in addition,
Internal Audit also assess the effectiveness and adequateness of the internal control system, since its works
independently, it can provide adequate control, transparent and can be the balanced mechanisms against
improper acts that could give negative impact to the shareholders investments in the Company and its assets.
The Internal Audit directly report to Audit Committee.

5. Responsibilities of The Board of Directors
e  Sub-Committee

1. The Structure of The Board of Directors
1.1 The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors consists of 7 to 15 persons with excellent qualification and experience
relevant to the company’s business. The qualifications of the Board of Directors must comply with the Act of
Public Company Limited, the Regulation of the Security Exchange Commission and Stock Exchange of Thailand.
The Board of Directors of the Company consists of at least 5 Independent Directors as of December 31, 2013,
the Board of Directors of the Company consists of 14 Directors:

(1) 2 Executive Directors
(2) 12 Non-Executive Directors

The Chairman of The Board of Directors is not the President.

The name list of The Board of Directors and its responsibilities are referred in Management
Structure section.

1.2 The Committee of the Board of Directors consists of
1.2.1 Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall consist of 3 Independent Committee members with at least one
member who is knowledgeable in finance and accounting, an Internal Audit Office manager being a secretary.
The qualifications of the Audit Committee shall reflect the Capital Market Supervisory Board’s requirement on
qualifications of independence announcement. As of December 31, 2013, the Audit Committee consists of 3
Independent Directors who possess high professional and ethical standards with experience and expertise in
internal audit. They are able to be responsible for monitoring and assessing the adequacy of the internal control,
then expressing their opinions with regard to the benefits of the Company to the Board of Directors. The
names of the Audit Committee and its responsibility are listed and referred in Management Structure section.

1.22 Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee is a sub-committee of management, shall consist of Senior
Executive Officers and Executive Officers, and is chaired by President. The roles and responsibilities of the
Risk Management Committee are listed and referred in Management Structure section.
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2. Meeting of the Board of Directors

The meeting of the Board of Directors must be held at least 6 times a year and be scheduled through
the year in advance to ensure that all directors shall manage their time to attend the meetings. In case of
needed, a meeting shall be convened. The agenda and attached documents for Board Meetings must be prepared
and determined clearly whether for information or consideration, and shall be submitted to the Board of Directors not
less than 7 days before the meetings to ensure smooth meeting procedure with clear decisions and resolutions.
In addition, related Executives should attend the board meeting to present information and express opinions
which benefit to the meeting.

All directors shall be allocated appropriate time for free discussion and to express their opinions, with
regard to the benefit and fairness of the company’s shareholders and related persons. In case there are any
benefits or significances related in such agenda for interested directors or executives, they shall not participate
in such agenda unless the meeting goes on to next agenda. The Secretary of the Board of Directors shall
take the minutes and must prepare a draft meeting report within 14 days after a meeting, then presents to the
Board of Directors for consideration before submitting to the Board of Directors in the next Board Meeting for its
approval and acknowledgement. The Chairman of the Board or the Chairman of a meeting and the Secretary
of the Board of Directors must sign for acknowledgement on the minute, then keep filing for further review
and inspection when needed.

In 2013, The Board of Directors Meetings was held 7 times. The meeting-attendance report of the
Board Directors is shown in Management Structure section.

3. Remuneration

The levels of Directors’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of listed companies in The Stock
Exchange of Thailand which have the similar size of business and in the same industrial sector. Also consider
the duties and responsibilities of the directors concerned and the Company’s performance. Directors’ remunera-
tion is approved at an Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting. For directors who are assigned more works and
responsibilities, such as the Audit Committee, shall receive additional remunerations appropriately.

The executives’ remunerations shall be considered and approved with regard of the policies set by
the Board of Directors. The levels of executives’ remunerations shall be comparable to those of companies
in the same industry taking into consideration of the duties and responsibilities, individual performance, the
Company’s performance, with fairness, to motivate the high professional and standard ones to work with us
longer.

The remunerations for directors and executives in 2013 are referred in Management Structure section.

e Directors and Top Management Nomination and Appointment
(1) Independent directors

As required by the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and the Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET), the company has defined the Board of Directors’ independence as follows:
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1. Holding shares not more than 1 percent of the total shares with voting rights of the Company, major
shareholder, or controlling person including related person.

2. Not being or having previously been a directorship who takes part in the management, an employee,
a staff or an advisor of the Company unless the termination of being in such position had occurred
at least 2 years before an appointment.

3. Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws such as parents, spouse sibling and
child of its executives, its major shareholder, its controlling person, or such other person who will be
nominated to take up the position of executives or controlling persons of the Company or its subsidiary.

4. Not holding business relationship with the company, major shareholder, or person holding controlling
power of the company, which may hinder the exertion of his/her independent discretion, and not
being or having ever been a shareowner with significant implication, or person holding controlling power
of the person holding business relationship with the company, major shareholder, or person holding
controlling power of the company unless having vacated from said tenure for not less than two years
before appointment which value < 50 MB / <3% of the Net Tangible Asset (NTA) up to the greater
number.

5. Not being or having previously been an auditor of the Company or the major shareholder, or the
controlling person and not being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling person, or
a managing partner of the audit office which being the auditor of the Company unless the termination
of being in such position had occurred at least 2 years before an appointment.

6. Not being or having previously been any professional service provider including legal advisor and
financial advisor who receives more than baht 2 million annually from the Company, major shareholder,
or controlling person and also being a shareowner with significant implication, or the controlling person,
or a managing partner of such professional service provider unless the termination of being in such
position had occurred at least 2 years before an appointment

7. Not being a director appointed as a representative of the Company’s directors, a major shareholder
or a shareholder who is related to the Company’s major shareholder.

8. Not undertaking a business with similar nature or significant competition with the Company, or not
being a major partner of a partnership, or a director who take part in management, an employee, a
staff, an advisor with regular payroll, or owning shares more than 1 percent of all shares with voting
right of other companies with similar business or significant competition with the company.

9. Not having any other characteristics that prevent the exertion of independent opinion and not having
prohibited characteristics as required by the Securities and Exchange Commission’s regulations.

(2) Directors and Top Management Nomination
The selection of Directors

A part of the Board of Directors consists of representatives from major shareholders; Nippon Closures
Company Limited and Toyo Seikan Company Limited who nominate Japanese directors to be appointed at
the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders which passed the resolution of the Board of Directors. Another
part includes the qualified persons nominated by the group of beverage industry who have regular business
with the Company and qualified persons in other fields. All of the Directors are qualified, knowledgeable, and
experienced in various fields which have been useful to the Company.

; SIEUUSOU 2556
i Annual Report 2013



R A ey -

In the nomination and appointment of the Directors, each person must qualify the Public Company Act,
the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand including the Company’s policies
and the principles of the Good Corporate Governance.

1. Having the knowledge, abilities and experience to be beneficial on the Company’s businesses

2. Having a honesty, an ethic and responsibility, decision making on principle and reasonably

w

Having leadership, vision and independence in making decision.
4. Able to devote sufficient time to monitor the Company’s operation

5. Having the correct qualifications and having no forbidden characteristics according to the law, Limited
Public Company Act, Securities and Exchange Act, and the Principle of Good Corporate Governance
of the Company such as;

(1) be sui juris;

(2) Not a bankrupt, incapable or incompetent person

(3) Not having been imprisoned by the judgment of a court which is final for an offence related to
property committed with dishonest intent;

(4) Have never been dismissed or removed from government service or a government organization or
a government agency in punishment for dishonesty in performing their duties

(5) There shall be no restrictions to prevent a person to become a director regarding the rules and
regulations of The Stock Exchange of Thailand.

In event of a vacancy of the Director other than the retirement by rotation, the Board of Directors will
select a qualified person with no forbidden characteristics as per stated in the announcement of the Securities
Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the legal specification of the Public Company to
fill the position of the Director for the next Board of Directors’ meeting. The director appointed to fill a vacant
position will only serve the remaining term of that vacant position.

The Minor Shareholders’ right in the Appointment of Directors

In order to provide the opportunity to the minor shareholders to propose the Shareholder meeting
agendas and nominate a person to be the director in advance. Therefore, the Company had announced the
criteria and process of which through via the Company’s website and informed to The Stock Exchange of
Thailand to ensure that the shareholders have been informed. However, the Company gives an opportunity to
the shareholders in inquiry and suggestion prior to the date of the meeting by calling or sending questions to
the Company Secretary Officer at all time.

In 2013, the Company had provided the opportunity to shareholders for proposing the shareholders
meeting agendas and nominated persons to be elected as the Company’s directors during November 8, 2013
to January 31, 2014 but no any proposal.
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Appointment, removal, or termination of Directorial positions is summarized as follows:

1. In nomination of directors to replace directors who complete their terms, the Board of Directors is
responsible to, recruit a qualified candidate who possesses no prohibited characteristics as stated
in the Announcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission concerning, the Stock Exchange
of Thailand, as well as the Law of Public Company, and propose to the Shareholders’ Meeting. The
company gives right and opportunity to all shareholders to nominate and appoint any person to be a
director at the meeting via through the Company’s website, this right has not been exercised.

2. The Shareholders’ Meeting elects Directors by way of a majority vote, according to the following rules:

(1) Each shareholder has one vote for each share held

(2) Each shareholder has a total number of votes equivalent to the total number of shares held,
wherein one share carries one vote

(3) Each shareholder is required to exercise all his votes in voting for one or several persons as
Directors

(4) Candidates receiving the most votes in successively descending order will be appointed as
Directors according to, but not exceeding, the number of Directors to be appointed on that
particular occasion

(5) In the event that two candidates secure an equal number of votes for the final position of

Director, the Chairman of the Meeting will cast the deciding vote

3. Directors may also leave their posts due to fatality; resign prior to the completion of term (Effective as
of the date the company has received the director’s resignation letters); the Court or the Shareholders’
Meeting passes a resolution to remove a Director according to Section 76 of the Public Company Act
B.E. 2535 (1992); or a Director lacks the qualifications as specified in the Section 68 of the Public
Company Act B.E. 2535 (1992).

4. In case the Director was vacated other than vacating their office by rotation, the remaining Directors
will select a qualified candidate who does not possess any prohibited characteristics as a replacement
at the following Board of Directors’ Meeting with a vote of not less than three quarters of the remaining
Directors except the said Directorial position has a period of less than 2 months to completion of
term. The replacement Director may serve only the period of time remaining to completion of such
term.

The Development of Directors and Management.

The Company promotes and facilitates training and the continuing education for related persons with
the Corporate Governance system such as, Directors, Management and Corporate Secretary, This enables
continuous improvement to work performance. In addition, in case there is the new director(s), the Company
will arrange the orientation and plant visit to educate them on the Company business regarding the Company
operation overview, the development of business and organization, the good corporate governance policy and
code of conduct.

Furthermore, the related laws and regulations including the other useful information are prepared as
the manual handbook for the new director to well perform the duty.
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In addition, so as to ensure that the capabilities and experience of the Board of Directors can be

contributed maximum benefit for the Company, there is no limitation to the number of times a Director may
be re-elected, nor any limitations in terms of a retirement age.

e Governance of the subsidiaries and associated companies
The Company has neither subsidiaries nor associated companies.
e Internal information Control

The Board of Director has a preventive measure of unfair using inside information by related persons.
The directors, management and also employees who are closed to the company’s internal data, are supposed
not to make advantage for themselves or their relatives and not to disclose any information to outsider or
unrelated persons before the important information is publicized.

Moreover, the directors and management include their spouse and minor children who have changed
in the Company’s shares owner have to inform the Securities and Exchange Commission within three working
days from the date of buying, purchasing, transferring and receiving the Company’s shares and inform the
Company soonest. In the case whereby there’s any transaction with the Company during the year, the directors
and management have to inform to the Company whether such transaction may lead to conflict of interests or
not. These measures are to ensure the transparency and fairness of the Company. Additionally, the directors
and management also realize the seriousness of penalty for insider trading.

e Auditor Remuneration

1.) Audit fee

Audit fee payable to Office of auditor shown as details below:

- Fiscal year 2011 equal to 995,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2012 equal to 965,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2013 equal to 890,000 Baht

2.) Non audit fee

Service fee for observe and certify the destruction of registered products which under quality standard
payable to Office of auditor shown as details below:

- Fiscal year 2011 equal to 20,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2012 equal to 20,000 Baht
- Fiscal year 2013 equal to 20,000 Baht
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The Company has disclosed the information about this topic on the website www.crownseal.co.th at

Environment and Social Section, Re: Social Responsibility
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited highly see the vital on the internal control. We put emphasized
on this, to cover all activities, sufficiently and appropriate for Company’s operation. Therefore to increase the
efficiency and effectiveness in operating. The using of resources and preserving asset including the credible
and accuracy of financial report are needed. We strictly following the laws and regulations relating to the
Company’s business. For this reason, the Company has appointed the Audit Committee who qualified with
laws governing securities and stock exchange. Assigned the Internal Audit Office Manager as the secretary.
The Audit Committee’s duties are to review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and internal
audit system. As the Internal Audit Office is responsible for evaluating the sufficiency and effectiveness of
Internal control system in main process of the Company’s business. To review the accuracy and completeness
of financial report, express and share their opinions to the management. In order to assure the important
operation and financial activities of the Company having adequate and appropriate internal control. In which
ongoing incompliance with laws and regulation relating to the company business .

However, the Internal Audit Office will report the inspecting result directly to the Audit Committee. This
is to ensure their independence and keep the balance of investigation.

1. Control Environment:

e The company specify the term of the visions, mission, strategy, and plans. In order to reach the
success of Company’s goal.

e The company clearly set up the organization chart according to the proper responsibility. This
include job description, scope of works and qualification in each position.

e The Board of Directors adopt the policy in accordance with the principles of Good Corporate
Governance and corporate ethic.

e The company consistency provide the opportunity to develop knowledge and skill for all employees.

2. Risk Management:

e The company established the Risk Management committee by having the President as the
Chairman and the management as the committee, which have clearly role in operation.

e Having the manual in Risk Management to clearly set the guidance and practice. To help evaluate
the risk in each level appropriately. The 2 main aspects of evaluations are the impact of the loss
that caused by the incident and the chance that might happen (Likelihood).Therefore to consider
that the level of risk is; high, medium or low.

e Giving an approval for the Risk Management plans and measures as well as evaluate the efficiency
of Risk Management, review, revise plans to cope with the change of risk factors both internal
and external that may cause.

3. Activities Control

e The company has guidelines policy for operation in all departments. There are the action plan, key
performance indicators, and the annual budget to ensure the effectiveness of operation in reaching
the goals.

e The company is given written procedure and authority manual of each management levels and
regularly review them to be in line with the changing situation. It is to assure that the operation
is transparent and flexible under appropriate and adequacy internal control.

e In case if a connected transaction with the company’s related person whom may lead to conflict
of interests. That connected transaction shall comply with rules, regulations and related laws as
same as any other transaction.

; SIEUUSOU 2556
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4. Information and Communication

e The company set up various channels for communications both internal and external. All
concerning parties can access to accurate, updated and adequate information for their operation
and decision-making.

e The Board of Director's meetings and the management meetings are regularly meet in order to
deploy the policy, working guidelines and share necessary information to involved officers.

e The company has introduced SAP system to record data and analyze the operating result.
Also prepare for a financial report by using the Business Objects software which facilitate more
accurate work for the officers. To support the faster and more efficient decision-making for the
management.

e The company set up security system of internet usage securely and sufficiently. Having contingency
plan to reduce the effect of system shut down that may cause damage to the whole system. We
also go over and practice the contingency plan yearly.

e The employees can access data for information via internet, while outsider can receive information
from the Company’s website www.crownseal.co.th. which has been proved by the responsible

department manager or assigned officers.

(o1}

. Monitoring and Evaluation

e The management team meet monthly in order to monitor the performance of employees in all
levels by their key performance indicator. To ensure the operation is following the plan and reaching
the goal, by regularly reporting to the Board of Directors. When the result appear differently from
the goal, the committee will have some questions, suggestions and assign the management to
resolve the problem. Then report for the up-coming meeting.

e Having an Internal control system and the Risk Management of the company. Perform the internal
audit according to the yearly audit plan which approved by the Audit Committee. To investigate
and evaluate the operation result of each department on the internal control. The Internal Audit
Office perform under the Company’s rules and regulations. To provide recommendations to the
management and the person in charge for better performance. Also, follow up on the result of
improvement according to the recommendations of the internal auditor and external auditor, then
directly report to the Audit Committee every quarter.

In 2013, the total of 4 Audit Committee meetings were convened and reviewed the company’s quarterly
financial statements and financial report. This included disclosure the financial information and qualify that the
financial report is correct in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards and adequate for disclosure.
Also, review the internal audit result and follow up the management operation result, according to the suggestion
of internal auditor and external auditor. As well as to notify and provide the useful recommendation to the
company. The Audit Committee had considered and suggested the Company’s connected transaction, including
the approval of the Internal Audit plan for 2014 and also recruited the company’s auditors and considered
audit fee for that year.
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Related Party Transactions

1. As of 31 December 2013, the Company’s transactions with related companies are as follows:

Value
T Basis of Consideration Value
Item Parties Involved Relationship of Contract Term (Million Baht)
Determination
2013 2012
1. Ordinary and usual courses of
business transaction
1.1 Sales of crown caps, Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd.' Shareholder and the same - 687.29 821.05 | Monthly payment / with reference to
pilfer-proof caps, maxi-series ThaiNamthip Ltd. partial group of directors market price which are the same rate
and plastic caps Serm Suk Plc® as others
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd.* The same major shareholder
Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC)® Major shareholder and
the same partial group of
directors
1.2 Sales of equipments and Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd. Shareholder and the same - 1.51 1.12 Monthly payment / with reference to
spare parts Serm Suk Plc. partial group of directors market price which are the same rate
Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and as others
the same partial group of
directors
2. Transactions that support
ordinary and usual course of
business
2.1 Printing and related Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.° The same major shareholder - 139.82 133.41 Monthly payment / with reference to
- Printing and coating metal and partial group of directors market price which are the same rate
sheet services as others
- Printing artworks
- Printing of sample printed sheet
2.2 License agreement Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and 5 years 25.16 20.06 Half - yearly payment / royalty fee
the same partial group of is set as a percentage rate of sales
directors volume of caps. And rate charged by
NCC is not higher than others
2.3 Purchase of spare parts, Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (NCC) Major shareholder and the - 35.18 51.59 Monthly payment / with reference to
raw materials and same partial group of directors market price which are the same rate
machineries Saiwai Shoji Co., Ltd.” The same major shareholder as others.
Tokan Trading Corporation Co., Ltd.®
Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd.’
3. Short-term property rental
contract which is no longer
than 3 years
3.1 Land lease (3,626 Sqm.) Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The same major shareholder 1 year 0.28 0.28 Yearly payment and lease rate is set
(The excise office and and partial group of directors (1 Sep.12 - by Fair Value appraised by
Car park) 31 Aug.13) independent appraiser
3.2 Office rental (360 Sgm.) Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co.. Ltd. The same major shareholder 1 year 0.78 0.78 Yearly payment and rental rate is set
(1 Jan.13 - by Fair Value appraised by
31 Dec.13) independent appraiser.
4. Asset and service transactions
4.1 Administrative Service for Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The same major shareholder 1 year 2.29 2.84 Monthly payment / service fee is
Computer Software and and partial group of directors (1 Jan.13 - set by proportion of workload plus
Hard ware, SAP and 31 Dec.13) margin 4%
Personnel systems
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The same major shareholder 1 year 295 2.88 Monthly payment / service fee is
(1 Jan.13 - set by proportion of workload plus
31 Dec.13) margin 4%
Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd." The same major shareholder 1 year 0.62 0.96 Monthly payment / service fee is
(1 Jan.13 - set by proportion of workload plus
31 Dec.13) margin 4%
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Value

Basis of Consideration Value Deter-

Item Parties Involved Relationship of Contract Term (Million Baht)
mination
2013 2012
4.2 Setup Service for Computer Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The same major 3 months 2.19 - Service payment after completed
Software and Hardware shareholder (1 Apr.13 - work and service fee is set by
and SAP 30 Jun.13) proportion of workload.

43 IT infrastructure Services Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The same major 1 year 1.10 1.10 Paying on due date / with
shareholder and partial (1 Jan.13 reference to market price as
group of directors - 31 service provider charged.

Dec.13)
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The same major 1 year 0.025 0.025 | Paying on due date / with
shareholder (1 Jan.13 - reference to market price as
31 Dec.13) service provider charged.
Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd. The same major 1 year 0.005 0.005 | Paying on due date / with
shareholder (1 Jan.13 - reference to market price as
31 Dec.13) service provider charged.

4.4 Server Rental Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The same major 4 years 0.22 0.23 Yearly payment / rental service fee

shareholder (1 Jan.11 - is set by proportion of number of

31 Dec.14) users plus margin 4%
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd The same major 4 years 0.43 0.45 Yearly payment / rental service fee
shareholder and partial (1 Jan.11 - is set by proportion of number of

group of directors 31 Dec.14) users plus margin 4%
Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd. The same major 4 years 0.07 0.08 Yearly payment / rental service fee
shareholder (1 Jan.11 - is set by proportion of number of

31 Dec.14) users plus margin 4%

4.5 Central Utility Service Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The same major 1 year 0.29 0.27 Monthly payment / service fee

shareholder (1 Jan.13 - is set by proportion of area and
31 Dec.13) number of staff plus margin 4%
4.6 Land lease 20-1-87 rai Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The same major 30 Years 0.50 0.50 Onetime payment totally THB 15
(Office and 2-piece can plant) shareholder and partial (2 Julo1 - million on contract date. Price
group of directors 1 Jul. 31) of land is equal to base price
that company bought from BCM.
Rental rate is 1.5% per year of
land price at present value and
discount by 8%.

4.7 Land lease 8-3-80 rai Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd The same major 30 Years 0.49 0.49 Onetime payment totally THB 14.78
(Building no. 3,4 scrap shareholder and partial (2 Julot - million on contract date/Fair Value
baler and loading area) group of directors 1 Jul. 31) of land is appraised by independent

appraiser. Rental rate is 1.5 % per
year of land price at present value
and discount by 8%
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Note
1. Group of Boon Rawd Brewery Co., Ltd; Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.
2. ThaiNamthip Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.
3. Serm Suk Plc.; Manufacturer and distributor of beverages.
4. Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ; Manufacturer and distributor of plastic bottles.
5. Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. ; Manufacturer and distributor of packaging.
6. Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer and distributor of Easy Open end, 2-Piece Cans,
3-Piece Cans.
7. Saiwai Shoji Co., Ltd.; Distributor of machinery and spare parts.

Tokan Trading Corporation Co., Ltd.; Distributor of machinery and spare parts.
Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd.; Manufacturer of Injection Moldings and Plastic Moldings.
10. Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd; Containing and distributor of aerosol cans for body and hair

products.

2. Necessities and Reasons for Entering into the Transactions

In 2013, the company had transactions with related persons which can be categorized to 4 types

(as disclosed in article 1) as follows:

1. An ordinary business transaction

2. A supporting ordinary business transaction

3. A property rent and lease with no more than 3 years transaction
4

An asset or service transaction

The entering into above transactions, the Company had considered its reasons and necessities,
conditions and the fair price to gain the highest benefit for the Company. In case that ordinary business
and supporting ordinary business transactions, the company proceeded with normal commercial terms of the
ordinary and usual course of business which is the same criteria as an external person. For the property
rent and lease transactions with no more than 3 years and the transaction related to the assets or services,
the company determined the rent and service fee according to the fair value from the independent appraiser
and using sharing cost basis according to the proportion of workload plus the profit comparing with the

market price.

The agreement in any transactions/contracts with any other persons who have conflicts of interest
with the Company, the necessities and reasons will be considered including all criteria and fair value to

prevent the conflicts of interest and gain the highest benefit for the company.
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Audit Committee Report

y 4

To The Shareholders

The Audit Committee of Crown Seal Company Limited consists of three knowledgeable Independent
Directors, with experience in economics, business, accounting and auditing. These members are appropriate
qualifications as requirements of The Securities Exchange Commission(SEC) which are consisting Mrs. Pilai
Piemphongsarn as chairman of the committee, Mr. Satit chanjavanakul and Mr.Pongpanu Svetarundra as committee
member and Ms. Wannapa Somprasit as Secretary.

The Audit Committee has independently performed according to its assignment from the Board of
Directors in accordance with the Stock Exchange of Thailand regulations. During 2013, the Audit Committee
held 4 meetings with the external auditor, senior management, and internal audit manager. In addition, the
committee held a meeting with the external auditor to discuss independently. The significant tasks are summarized
as follows;

1. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s quarterly and annual financial statements for Year
2013 and discussed main issues with the external auditor regarding the accuracy, completeness, reliability of
the financial statements and the sufficiency of disclosure of important information. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the financial statements have been presented accurately, completely and creditably in accordance
with generally accepted accounting standards and disclosure adequately for benefit of users.

2. The Audit Committee reviewed internal audit reports and assessment results on the effectiveness of
internal controls conformed to the approved 2013 audit plan including provided the suggestions and monitored
the results of risk assessment in major activities. The Audit Committee has opinion that the internal audit
system of the Company has been suitable, adequate and efficient.

3. Internal audit supervision, the committee advised the operational internal audit office and approved
internal audit plan of 2014 which emphasizes the internal control system and risk management in major activities.

4. The Audit Committee reviewed the compliance with law on the Securities and stock Exchange, the
Stock Exchange of Thailand’s regulation and other laws relating to the company’s business. The Company has
performed in compliance with law, regulation and relevant requirements continuously.

5. The Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s connected transactions or the transactions may lead
to conflict of interest to ensure accuracy and complied with the Stock Exchange of Thailand regulations which
have been considered natures, rationality and necessity. The Committee is of opinion that it has reasonability,
fairness and adequate disclosure of information completely.

6. Appointment of the external auditor for 2014, The Audit Committee concluded the external auditor
of Ernst & Young Office Ltd. has performed independently, professionally, with satisfactory and efficient results.
The Committee proposed to the Board of Directors prior to being presented for approval at the Annual Ordinary
Meeting of Shareholders for the appointment of Ms. Pimjai Manitkajohnki C.P.A. Registration No.4521 and/or Mr.
Chayapol Suppasedtanon C.P.A. Registration No. 3972, and/or Ms. Rungnapa Lertsuwankul C.P.A. Registration
No. 3516, and/or Mr. Sophon Permsirivallop C.P.A. Registration No. 3182 as the Company‘s Auditor of 2014

On behalf of the Audit Committee

PWW

Mrs. Pilai Piemphongsarn

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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The Explanation and Analysis of operating results for
the year 2013 compared to 2012

In year 2013, the Company had earnings before tax for the amount of 422 million Baht, which had
increased from previous year for the amount of 54 million Baht or equivalent to 14.7%. After the deduction of
the corporate income tax for the amount of 84 million Baht, the Company had net profit of 338 million Baht,
which had increased from the previous year 52 million Baht or equivalent to 182%. The earnings per share
were 6.49 Baht, which had increased from the previous year of 0.99 Baht per share. The net profit ratio was
11.5% and the return on equity was 16.0%.

On 27 February 2014, the Company had the meeting of the Board of Directors and had decided with
the resolution of paying a dividend of Baht 1.75 per share for ordinary shareholders and Baht 3.25 per share
for preferred shareholders, for a total of 94 million Baht. This resolution should propose to this in-coming
Annual General Meeting of shareholders to be held in April 2014 for the approval by shareholders.

The Company’s net profit had increased from the previous year for the amount of 52 million Baht or
equivalent to 18.2%. It came from the increase of sale revenue higher than last year for 3.0% of the sales
quantities and the decrease of cost of sales lower than last year for 2.2%. There was the increase of sale
for the high profit products and the efficiency of cost reduction, which led to the higher gross profit than last
year for 31.9%.

Unit : Million Baht

Different
Year 2013 Year 2012
Amount %
Earnings before tax 422 368 54 14.7
Less Corporate income tax 84 82 2 24
Net Profit 338 286 52 18.2

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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o Revenues

In year 2013, the Company had the total revenues of 2,937 million Baht consisted of sales and service
income for the amount of 2,784 million Baht or equivalent to 94.8% of total revenues. Other incomes consisted
of income from sales of scrap metal, administrative income, rental income, and interest income for the total

of 153 million Baht or equivalent to 5.2% of total revenues.

The Company had the total revenues increased from the previous year for the amount of 67 million
Baht or equivalent to 2.3%. The main reason was the increase of the Company sales and service income
of the previous year for the amount of 80 million Baht or equivalent to 3.0%. Other incomes had decreased
from the previous year for the amount of 13 million Baht or equivalent to 7.8%. It was the decrease of the

sales of scrap metal, which came from the decrease of global sales price.

Unit: Million Baht

Year 2013 Year 2012 Different
Amount % Amount % Amount %

Revenues

Sales 2,641 89.9 2,570 89.5 71 28
Service income 143 4.9 134 4.7 9 6.8
Total sales and service 2,784 94.8 2,704 94.2 80 3.0
income

Other income 158 52 166 5.8 (13) (7.8)
Total revenues 2,937 100.0 2,870 100.0 67 23

e Sales, Cost of Sales and Gross Profit

In 2013 the Company had sales and printing services incomes for the amount of 2,784 million Baht
and the cost of sales and services for the amount of 2,242 million Baht or equivalent to 80.5% of sales. The
Company had gross profit for the amount of 542 million Baht or equivalent to 19.5% of sales, which had
increased from the year 2012 for the amount of 131 million Baht or equivalent to 31.9%. It was due to the
increase of sale for the high profit products, which led to the higher gross profit. In addition, the Company

had efficiency in manage the cost reduction.

Unit : Million Baht

Year 2013 Year 2012 Different
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Sales and Service income 2,784 100.0 2,704 100.0 80 3.0
Cost of sales and Service 2,242 80.5 2,293 84.8 (51) (2.2)
Gross profit 542 19.5 411 15.2 131 31.9

Usun wisu 9inm- (Umisu)
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e Selling & Administrative Expenses

In the year 2013, the Company had selling and administrative expenses for the amount of 273 million
Baht or equivalent to 9.3% of total revenues. It was consisted of selling expenses for the amount of 141
million Baht or equivalent to 4.8% of total revenues. The administrative expenses were amounting 132 million

Baht or equivalent to 45% of total revenues.

The Company’s selling expenses had increased from the previous year for the amount of 75 million
Baht or equivalent of 1.1 times. The main reasons were the Company had to pay the compensation for the
product sold with the quality of under-standard. In addition the Company had to pay for the loss of customers’

products that using the under-standard products of the Company.

The Company had the administrative expenses decrease for the amount of 11 million Baht or equivalent
to 7.7%.
for the amount of 7 million Baht and the increase of administrative expenses for the amount of 3 million Baht

The main reasons were the adjustment of reversal loss on diminution in value of long-term investment

came from the increase of personnel expenses. In year 2012, the Company had loss on written off on the
build-in equipment of the building bought for renovation of the new factory the amount of 7 million Baht.

Unit : Million Baht

114

Year 2013 Year 2012 Different
Amount % Amount % Amount %
Selling & administrative expenses
Selling expenses 141 4.8 66 23 75 113.6
Administrative expenses 132 45 143 5.0 (11) (7.7)
Total expenses 273 9.3 209 7.3 64 30.6

e Corporate Income Tax

In the year 2013, the Company had the corporate income tax for the amount of 84 million Baht, which

had increased from the previous year for the amount of 2 million Baht or equivalent to 2.1%.

The current income tax for 2013 had the amount of 83 million Baht at the rate 20% which had
increased for the amount of 5 million Baht from the previous year, which had the rate of 23%.

to The Company had the earning before tax had increased for the amount of 54 million Baht.

The Company had the Deferred tax expenses for the amount of one million Baht, which had decreased
for the amount of 3 million Baht from the previous year.

It was due

It was the adjustment of this amount to the deferred

income tax revenue as there were the increase of reserved for defective and slow moving inventories.

Unit : Million Baht
Different
Year 2013 Year 2012
Amount %

Income Tax
Current Income Tax 83 78 5 6.4
Deferred Tax Expenses 1 4 (3) (75.0)

Total 84 82 2 24

; SIEUUSOU 2556
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e Capital Expenditures

In the year 2013, the Company had the capital expenditures for the amount of 284 million Baht. The
main portion of the investment was the machinery for increasing the efficiency. Moreover, the Company had
renovated of the building for the use of increasing the capacity of production according to the demand of
markets.

Financial Status

o Assets

The total assets of the Company at the year-end of 2013 were 2,861 million Baht, which had increased
from 2012 for the amount of 235 million Baht or equivalent to 9.0%. It consisted of the current assets,
long-term investment, investment properties, property, plants & equipment, deferred tax assets and non-current
assets in the ratio of 49.0%, 1.6%, 14.8%, 33.4%, 1.0% and 0.2% respectively. Assets categories were as
follows:

Unit : Million Baht

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 Different

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Current Assets 1,401 49.0 1,278 48.7 123 9.6
Non-Current Assets :
Long-Term Investment 45 16 92 35 (47) (51.1)
Investment Properties 425 14.8 425 16.2 - -
Property Plants and Equipments 957 334 788 30.0 169 214
Deferred Tax Assets 27 1.0 24 0.9 3 12.50
Other Non-Current Assets 6 0.2 19 0.7 (13) (68.4)
Total Assets 2,861 100.0 2,626 100.0 235 9.0

Total current asset was 1,401 million Baht had increased from 2012 for the amount of 123 million
Baht or equivalent to 9.6%. The main reasons came from the cash surplus of the operating activities from
the profit had increased. Moreover, there was also increase from the account receivable from the increase
sales, and the inventories with the projected amount of increase sales.

usSyN Wty nm- (UMsY)
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The long-term investment was 45 million Baht, which had decreased from 2012 for the amount of

47million Baht or equivalent 51.1%, due to the Company sold long-term investment of Petpak Company to
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings.

Property, plant and equipments amounted of 957 million Baht, which had decreased from 2012 for the
amount of 169 million Baht or equivalent to 21.4%. The main reason was the Company had increased the
investment in machinery and renovation of building in the new factory for the amount of 284 million Baht. The
calculation of the depreciation of total assets was 109 million Baht and written off the asset for the amount
of 6 million Baht.

The deferred tax assets had the amount of 27 million Baht, which had increased for the amount of
3 million from the year 2012. It was the adjustment of this amount to the deferred income tax revenue as
there were the increase of reserved for defective and slow moving inventories.

Other non-current assets had the amount of 6 million Baht, which had decreased from the year 2012
for the amount of 13 million Baht. It was due to the year 2012 had increased the asset of down payment
for the purchase of machinery.

¢ Liabilities

The total liabilities of the Company at the year-end of 2013 were 627 million Baht, which had decreased
from year 2012 for the amount of 10 million Baht or equivalent to 1.6%. It consisted of current liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities, and non-current liabilities, for the ratio of 68.1%, 7.5% and 24.4% respectively. Liabilities
categories were as follows:

Unit : Million Baht

31 December 2013 31 December 2012 Different

Amount % Amount % Amount %
Current Liabilities 427 68.1 456 71.6 (29) (6.4)
Deferred Tax Liabilities 47 75 45 71 2 44
Non-Current Liabilities 153 244 136 213 17 125
Total Liabilities 627 100.0 637 100.0 (10) (1.6)
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Current liabilities amounted of 427 million Baht, which had decreased for the amount of 29 million
Baht or equivalent to 6.4%. It was the decrease of the purchase of raw materials as the decrease global
price from the previous year and the decrease of the Corporate Income Tax payable. It was the decrease
of net profit of the second half of the year 2013. The Company paid the compensation to customers for the
under-standard products.

Non-current liabilities had the amount of 153 million Baht. It consisted of rental received in advance
for the amount of 16 million Baht. Provision for long-term employees’ benefits was 137 million Baht. The
non-current liabilities had increased from previous year for the amount of 17 million Baht or equivalent to
125%. It was the increased the reserved of provision for long-term employees’ benefits by actuaries.

e Shareholders’ Equity

As of 31" December 2013, the shareholders’ equity amounted of 2,235 million Baht, which had
increased from the previous year for the amount of 245 million Baht or equivalent to 12.3%. It was due to
the Company had the retained earnings as of 31% December 2013 amounted of 1,252 million Baht, which had
increased from previous year for the amount of 245 million Baht or equivalent to 24.4%. During the year of
2013, the Company had paid the dividends for 2012 for the amount of 80 million Baht. In 2013, the Company
had the comprehensive income for the amount of 325 million Baht.

e Liquidity and Source of funds & Used of funds

e Liquidity in 2013, the Company had the cash and cash equivalent for the amount of 489 million Baht,
which had increased from the year 2012 for the amount of 51 million Baht. It was due to the surplus
of cash flow from the operating activities.

As of 31% December 2013, the Company current ratio was 3.28 times which had increased from 2.81
times in 2012 and debt to equity ratio was 0.28 times which had decreased to 0.32 times at the year
of 2012.

e Source of funds & Used of funds for 2013 consisted of

1. Cash flows from operating activities amounted 324 million Baht, which came from income from
operating activities before changes in operating assets and liabilities amounted 537 million Baht.
The Company had increased the operating assets for the amount of 97 million Baht, which was
the increase of account receivable andinventories.

The company had decreased the operating liabilities for the amount of 24 million Baht, such
as trade and other payable and other current liabilities. In addition, the Company had paid the
corporate income tax for the amount of 92 million Baht.

2. Cash used in investing activities had the amount of 194 million Baht. It was mainly from the
investment of machinery for increasing the efficiency, the capacity of production and new product.
In addition the Company had sold the long-term investment of Pet Pak Company to Toyo Seikan
Group Holdings Ltd.

3. Cash flows from financial activities had the amount of 80 million Baht. It was mainly from the
company paid dividend to common shares and preferred shares.

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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(VU8 WuUm)

2556 2555
18,146 20,543
153 214
18,299 20,757

1% ' a o a a A 1% o o A o o &
POAANANITHINLIENY wazfansfitieadioeiu o Juf 31 sunaN 2556 was 2555 HAs1easidannil

-1 @ a A A [ ar
anvilimsAn - Aansiiiendasiu (vanewn 9)
gnwilay - Aensiieadiasiu (nanewe 9)
@ -2 a A A @ ar
Wwnildy - Aemsiiisndaiu (vanewe 16)
ANTISUAIKTN
ANNTUR VTN
Wn: faunasuiuanelunied

and
9

(W Wuun)

2556 2555
83,590 116,335
8,215 12,047
17,821 17,547
17,557 18,550
(1,179) (1,179)
16,378 17,371
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) USEne Ivihduwndnsn1swdn (Technical license agreement) iU USEm flUvsu laasizasa 91in o
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mawdnmudnsievaczeseenmezasiuddssiniissyludyan wasimuaseaAwimmnvniieu
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8. NudaLazs1ensiguinEuan

(Mg Wuun)

2556 2555
WUER 156 242
WUNINEUIAS 489,090 438,385
PIEY 489,246 438,627

Ui 31 SueN 2556 WuKnaaansnduazduanUszanisnseandaszninedoras 010 fy 2.95 sell
(2555: $paay 0.10 v 3.00 satl)
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9. ANVUNTITATLASANTIUDU

(VU2B: WUUIN)

2556 2555
anuiin1sd - Aen1sfiisadeetu
mqwﬁmﬁwﬂfumni’uﬁﬁoﬁmum‘*ﬁwsz
Solaifiorvundise 59,676 70,990
Aty
T 3 1fau 23914 45345
smgnniinad - AansiiAendasiu 83,590 116,335
anuiin1ad - Aen1sfiliiendeeiu
mqwﬁmﬁwﬂfumni’uﬁﬁaﬁmumhsz
Solaifiorvundise 242,049 190,076
Aty
T 3 1fau 94,567 58,036
3 - 6 LhpU - 15,531
6 - 12 Loy 84 -
iaugnwﬁmiﬁﬂ - Aamsfilsiisdioetu 336,700 263,643
anwiiau - Aensfipadesiu
NUNATDY 2457 4,422
gy 5758 7.625
iaugnwﬁﬁu - famsiieadeeiu 8215 12,047
anuiiay - Aensilaliisadeiu
NUNATDY 591 4,728
gnﬁﬁmnmimmﬁu‘i’aq 782 657
B q 2,497 1,728
somgnniiay - Aamsfliisdostiu 3,870 7113
smgnniinmaduazgnmiiou 432375 399,138
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10. AuUAIAIHED

Tensdsuanamulidu

(W W)

AU yargnailazléisy JudmAdvRe-gnd
2556 2555 2556 2555 2556 2555
fuddniagy 126,614 100,367 (12,975) (9.521) 113,639 90,846
UTERINI 157,861 152,430 (7.111) (3.358) 150,750 149,072
imqﬁuuazﬁ’aqa"umﬁm 144,449 120,133 (2.440) (2.710) 142,009 117,423
FUAITENINNIY 14,979 19,404 - - 14,979 19,404
alna 48,220 54,427 - - 48,220 54,427
SRty 492123 446,761 (22,526) (15,589) 469,597 431,172

1. Suasmuseeze

(M8 WuLm)

U3HN dadwduasmuEeay) yareuiyd
2556 2555 2556 2555
U35 1ae3wa alauwad aia 10.00 10.00 10,000 10,000
U3EN UNNBNLAY LmuELLWﬂwa%'o 411 1.61 1.61 9,494 9,494
UEM WL 971a 10.00 18.57 35,000 89,000
U3 aumnaadildoaan d1ie 0.08 0.08 180 180
U3EN wwsindm e 0.03 0.03 273 273
U3 leseniadnesaviaasa 91in 0.06 0.06 350 350
FINIIMU 55,297 109,297
win: ﬁmﬁamsmammgam (10,000) (17,314)
Wuawmuszezen - gnd 45297 91.983
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

141



euimazesuiEny usslugadmatndresduamuluuism venenuau unuyuraleeds 91 TaeRansan

PnsunsuiinTeseuuidmiudfugaiuil 31 Sunan 2555 uazsumsdusgadedavilasineuimsves
uiEmdana uasnudatisinamenuainmsesrvssduamuiisuilusanoulsvuely uisne Fsldlounduna
enuIINNITanastasyarduasuiuTaulsrinm 7 fuum TeetuiinlSudldaeinsiusmlsnanu
smsudilagiu

Tuszwialassnadiaaseedifqiiu v3sme Tdmodusmuluiuadiyoesish wasunwa s1i dudnou 120,000
Wiy vioAndusenar 857 vosyuaaeifeuliuiuism Taloletu 03y Teaded 91ia Tasimuasiameu
ar 48348 um Andudwawdusin 58 §uum viEny JufindilsnnnisneiBuasmudinanduaudszana
4 duumiduselddulusuilsmeusmiuliegiu - daswduamuniinsneaaniniosas 10 o
aanziou

ar a o & o
12. DEINIINNINY Lwamsamu

(Ve Wuun)

Audaassuay
Aauialiian foraas ARuan W
UDAAILIRD i’uﬁ 1 UN91AN 2555 143,498 160,500 122,500 426,498
NUTERIND - (700) (566) (1,266)
HEAAYIMAD o Uil 31 FudAn 2555 143,498 159,800 121,934 425232
UDAAILVRD ’ﬁlﬁ 31 5UNAN 2556 143,498 159,800 121,934 425,232

i Iidaldinsdssidiunadunindlufousune 2556 uaz 2555 lauusim sty udnwsda Usemelneg)
Olehle! ﬁotﬁuﬁﬂsuﬁuiwmﬁm: %ﬁTﬁ%ﬁLﬂ%ﬂuLﬁﬂm'lmmmﬂu"fluan’vﬂumsﬁ’mumﬂmﬁﬁuLLa:’lﬁgaﬁhﬁunu
Wasuunugn3 (Depreciated Replacement Cost Approach) (hunausilunmsmnuasmasnessislulasenis
Wity usEmy wm"mmﬂs:Lﬁwﬂaaﬁuw%’wﬁmuﬁ‘ﬁ'miﬁonam‘[ui']ﬂaqﬁ’uﬁﬁﬁmu‘l:\iLmnﬁiwmniﬁmﬂsnﬁu
ﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂuﬂ&h%ﬂuﬂ’ﬁ:ﬁﬁﬁm 5\11:J16”11J%’uﬂ§\1§aﬁhqﬁﬁssumaoﬁuw%’wﬁ
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Aa Gd
NnAw mmsua::qﬂn‘sm

Runsnide
UEASYAAATN
i hﬂ%’wﬁfiquﬁmgaﬁmwﬂmqu
LATBIANUAY
21ANTURE Aok A3av Rundw
RRIBIR TN wdaedns  ddnineuas FENIN
fifu 21A13 uazguUnInl  euwvue fing PRty
MU / ST s
1 ANIAN 2555 84,402 334,776 1,846,939 59,828 44,462 2,370,407
%E] LﬁN - - 12,289 3,166 92,648 108,103
v - (257) (30,183) (4,655) - (35,095)
Touwd (289N) - 9,928 66,022 1,390 (77,340) -
31 fuAN 2555 84,402 344,447 1,895,067 59,729 59,770 2,443,415
%ﬁ Wi - - 10,306 2,580 271,460 284,346
e - (162) (12,194) (4,527) - (16,883)
Towdn (aen) - 44911 54,851 7,663 (107.425) -
31 5uNAN 2556 84,402 389,196 1,948,030 65,445 223,805 2,710,878
Andanmaazan
1 ANIAN 2555 - 239,046 1,276,654 46,387 - 1,562,087
Audonsandmind - 11,845 90,911 5,761 - 108,517
Andonmdmsuguiidming - (241) (10,563) (4.631) - (15,435)
31 fuAN 2555 - 250,650 1,357,002 47517 - 1,655,169
Audonsandmind - 11,555 93,261 5,350 - 110,166
Adanasmsusiisming - (130) (7.149) (3,790) - (11,089)
31 fuAN 2556 - 262,075 1,443,114 49,077 - 1,754,266
yargnsawiind
31 §uAN 2555 84,402 93,797 538,065 12,212 59,770 788,246
31 fuAN 2556 84,402 127,121 504,916 16,368 223,805 956,612
Andansrmdmiud
2555 (103 &mum sweglusununsndn dwimiesmeglualdaelunisuims) 108517
2556 (105 fmum Tamegludununmsndn dwimiesmegludildglunisuimg 110,166

(U Wuum)
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15.

visne TdalHinsUseusiifuaseagaluiousunay 2554 Tasudum awdiu wdwwsda (Uszmdlng)

o o

e lael#AuSsuifisumamemadunasilunsimuasaghsss

mMnusEnY uaaeyaATesiinudena1feissamu yamanaand w Juil 31 Sunen 2556 s
WY 66 8IULMN (2555: 66 K1ULIN)

il 31 funen 2556 UsEN Ferasuargunaniduaunidsisiaanfonnamuauiusisaasddouey yae

U

autudnauinadonsaas AN dUNINaRINaITTININEY 993 UM (2555: 915 Eruuan)
91AsUATLAIBNINIUWEIUdENTINANE I UTEnILEEN AUUSEM vnenuAy uauyuAEeds e Tay
visne tufinie3asdnsdendanudaduiiiureuiine Seilyadmaind o fuil 31 Sunen 2556 fu
MU 25 ’IULMN (2555 28 &1ULIN)

funswdlusisnu
(e WuLmn)
2556 2555

BOWALIS FOWALIS

panduAns  AnBn1anan W ADNRUADS  ANBNINAR W
AUl 39,299 1,889 41,188 39,134 1,889 41,023
Foufin 1,184 - 1,184 224 - 224
T - - - (59) - (59)
Tamulaed 40,483 1,889 42372 39,299 1,889 41,188
AdinT e aNsiul 36,863 630 37,493 35,985 315 36,300
AdnaminaEnsul 1,092 315 1,407 935 315 1,250
AdnsmnpE Uiy - - - (57) - (57)
AfnT e anlaell 37,955 945 38,900 36,863 630 37,493
Runswilaifishau - qnd 2528 944 3472 2436 1,259 3,695

a a

I.Gw.ﬁnLﬁuummtazNuﬁﬁmzﬂzﬁ'umnamﬁ'umsﬁu

23

viEne fedudnifuiadsunsuasasduiiusrocaufidsldldls o il 31 Sunen 2556 Fwmudu 175
F WU WaT 900 UL ANEITU (2555: 175 FIULM WAT 940 LM ANaIF) dusenanlaiange
Aseiu

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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17.

v X @ ¥ -
LRTIAUNTIIALACEINKIUDU

¥mtin1g@ - Aansfildifsdaety

Wanddu - deanisineadeeiu

ANRNBNITNARAINIY
A

FIE MDY - Aanshinedioeiu

Wntiay - Aansfiliiedeeiu

WrHaU
AlFaedeane
TMEWE - Aansfilaiieadiaeiu

FaIEmiNsALaz L niEu

a1509nals STEI‘Wﬁi LULHNIVDINUNGIU

naUstluminadveananauzeswtineu (asensannuidu)
nadselemindseanainauasntineu (lasenswadselumnd)
navselemisruzaduresmiinau

EETY

(Ve Wuun)

2556 2555
298,505 308,582
11,942 12,711
5,879 4,836
17,821 17,547
31,490 29,838
39,097 44,642
70,587 74,480
386,913 400,609
(Vde: Wuun)

2556 2555

45,679 42,702
71,862 54,659
19,076 21,497
136,617 118,858

Fundudisesnalselaniszezenoeaniineu @nzlasenswadselond) Sodudusawewinedssanain

[
o A

Sunaasldsil

nazyniumalasansnadsslamisiug
wamﬂnuammﬁﬂi:mmmimuwé’ﬂﬂﬂ‘imﬂmm%ﬂs:ﬁuﬁﬂ
sunuudnisluiiaqiiu

ﬁuvgumamﬁﬂ

navselomifiansluszndned

nazaniumalasansnadslenivaisd

(Vidae: Wuun)

2556 2555
54,659 54,659
15,053 -

3545 2,623
2347 2310
(3.742) (4.933)
71,862 54,659
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saadl s 4

soil
(Ve Wuun)
2556 2555
funuze 4,204 3497
Aldanslunspsuaznsusms 1,688 1,436
PR 5,892 4,933

waﬂmmumnmiﬁs:mmmimuwﬁnmﬁmmam%ﬂs:ﬁ’uﬁﬂa:ammu%ﬁw°1 ﬁ%’ué’luouﬁﬂﬂmnulﬁmLﬂ%ﬁ;ﬁuuaﬁu

@

ffudrunilezesilsasan o Yufl 31 Sunaw 2556 HTwaudszanu 12 §uum (qm%mnmﬁﬁulﬁ) (2555:

Taidl)

o

sunfguiiddlunsszanamsnamdnadamanissiuiy o Tudszluagdldsl

2556 2555
(Gopazsinll) (Sopazsinl)
INIIARAR 350 450
sanstuduiiaulusunan (’ﬁuﬁu"ﬁwmq) 5.00 5.00
fnsmaiasuudasludurumineu 9.50 9.25

Funudumasgniiumalassnsnadsdemiuaznszyniuiignufudeneazesdssaunsaldmiudiagiuusy
AU foundsuanaldeioil
(W Wuun)

UM IEYNAY ﬁi’ﬂmun’]‘szgnﬁ’uﬁgnﬂ%’uﬂ‘ga
m‘mIﬂ‘Nﬂ’]iWﬂﬂitIﬂ“ﬁﬁ ﬁ?’]ﬂwaﬁlﬂdﬂ‘itﬂUﬂﬂiﬂj
1 2556 71,862 8,051
1 2555 54,659 -
1 2554 54,659 -
1 2553 51,539 -
1 2552 46,817 -

18.  viuy3uand

wuysnivdoesuiiny (Juiuysuindoiasvydediefidnslasuduiiumasaniuiuadaludasifefufuaiy

v
o A @

Ltazﬁﬁwﬁlﬁﬁ"uLﬁuﬂuwatﬁmﬁuﬁnﬁua: 150 U Wil uuSuansidunialinzanduiiuna Bnividnsasnides

9 9

mﬂzLLuuL’ﬁuLﬁmﬁuﬁumﬁmLmzﬁﬁw%LLUmLﬂuﬁumﬁm\lﬁ(uiuﬁﬂmsqmﬁ'mmamnmﬁau Tudnsvuyaudns 1
Viusaviuady 1 u
o Tufl 31 SuneAn 2556 war 2555 panavinanzeiuysHANTRSllainslEinsuasduiuatayfisuau

799,988 Viu

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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19.

20.

21.

22,

§1929AINNHNNTE

melfuniydfvesnn 116 wiwszssdyaRvisnmauinia wa. 2535 u5Eny devdasssmlagniuszad

sdunilslifunuasasitosninfesas 5 vesmlsgniusziivindoooamauazanenan (i) aunimuaises

lzfifubidesniifevas 10 sswuaamzideu sassmungranedenarldsansnilydetduiiuwe

a Yudl 31 Funen 2555 UsEe Iddaassilsdmsudisuiwbu 5 &uum Todudsesmungraneg

daufiunuanmsisaduning

a a

duAuuanmIBinamauning Aednuiunuanmsinaidudeduiuuilisusaiainioneuasay

wazldaansasneduduiiumag

swldau

eldnneneasiaguazeslng
MeldFusms

aoniiesy
ﬁ'lﬁulwuwﬂLmu%’nmnmqmiaﬁwhﬂuﬂ 2554
Ay q

RIPEN]

ANHIUATNANHUL

eIl FIeaNansurTenauf TN [T

Wuideu AussuazwadslomiBuzsamineu
AdansimuazAias g
AtiiansanyarsduMAABUAT AT NERUA
uazozlva
TOUNAUHRZIANUIINNITRARITEIYAANIUAIUTTHEET

ARNSNIINARINE

AltansusIRuE
@h’ﬁammmmzﬂﬂqa%’nm
Taghvuas YagRuidsldly

mMasunladlududia L%ﬁ)gﬂ LRZINUIZHINN

°

8

(e WuLn)

2556 2555
98,911 108,499
9,365 7,959
15141 10,314
- 21,770
29,225 17,481
152,642 166,023

Susosolui
(W Wuun)
2556 2555

403,635 382,701
112,316 111,423
26,249 18,367
(7,314) -
25,155 20,061
29,086 26,062
106,783 95,757
1,556,674 1,584,322
(31,678) 27,873
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23, alfsenEduld / funind mildy) mBsuldsedniid

o

Anldamulddmiudfugaiuil 31 Sunaw 2556 uaz 2555 agulédail

(e WuUun)

2556 2555
(USuugsln)

miulfilegiu:
mMBdulddfyanasmiul 83,125 78,276
miuldsamsinias:
midulisansdatiydainnisiia

HALANANTIATIILAZNNINEL

FENITHAUANANTIATI 852 3975
AldiemBdulinuanseglu

suilsmanu 83,977 82,251

ﬁiwuaunwﬁtﬁulﬁﬁLﬁmﬁmﬁumuﬂs:nauLwia:d’mmmﬁ'fl‘smmvgmﬁmLﬂ%ﬁ;ﬁuﬁf’mé’uﬂauqmiuﬁ 31 5UINAN 2556
waz 2555 aquldieiil
(VU8 Wuum)
2556 2555

mBduldsenisfadadnifsrdeiuwananuain

UszanunsmNranAmaansUseune 3,011 -

[

MenInsznuEenI Ui lFTemdsuldiunaussilimeiydivdanmenidsmiuliuga Tui

o

31 5UNAN 2556 WAL 2555 ﬂﬂN’]iﬂLLﬂﬂ\ﬂﬁﬂ\‘lﬁ

(VU8 Wuum)

2556 2555
(USurgalna)

mlanedaSrieunBduldifyans 421,697 368,017
Farniuldifyana 20% 23%
mlsnedanieunmBduldifyanagudnsni 84,339 84,644
NansENUN BT M3L;

Aldanediain 3.234 4573

Aldaneisianswnlaniadu (4,448) (10,941)

A q 852 3,975
W (362) (2.393)
Anldaemihdulsiuanseglusuilsananu 83977 82,251
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Crown Seal Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying financial statements of Crown Seal Public Company Limited, which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2013, and the related statements of income, comprehensive income,
changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in
accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.
| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.
Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Crown Seal Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2013, its financial performance and cash flows for the year

then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.
Emphasis of matter

| draw attention to Note 4 to the financial statements regarding the change in accounting policy due to the adoption
of Thai Accounting Standard 12 Income Taxes. The Company has restated the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012, presented herein as comparative information, to reflect the adjustments resulting from such change.
The Company has also presented the statement of financial position as at 1 January 2012 as comparative information,

using the newly adopted accounting policy for income taxes. My opinion is not qualified in respect of this matter.

Qi

Pimjai Manitkajohnkit
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4521
EY Office Limited
(Formerly known as “Ernst & Young Office Limited”)
Bangkok: 27 February 2014
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Statement of financial position

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
31 December | 31 December 1 January
Note 2013 2012 2012
(Restated)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 489,246,091 438,627,292 236,993,967
Trade and other receivables 7,9 432,375,151 399,138,178 367,471,954
Inventories 10 469,596,711 431,172,430 413,661,772
Other current assets 9,790,313 9,232,978 4,963,015
Total current assets 1,401,008,266 | 1,278,170,878 1,023,090,708
Non-current assets
Long-term investments 11 45,296,738 91,982,738 10,982,738
Investment properties 12 425,232,324 425,232,324 426,498,324
Property, plant and equipment 13 956,612,228 788,246,240 808,320,457
Intangible assets 14 3,471,762 3,694,861 4,723,319
Deferred tax assets 4, 23 27,574,337 23,603,318 25,404,524
Other non-current assets 2,144,400 15,240,192 8,296,915
Total non-current assets 1,460,331,789 | 1,347,999,673 1,284,226,277
Total assets 2,861,340,055 | 2,626,170,551 2,307,316,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
31 December | 31 December 1 January
Note 2013 2012 2012
(Restated)

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 7, 16 386,912,542 400,609,436 347,750,322
Current portion of rental received in advance 7 1,179,275 1,179,275 992,608
Corporate income tax payable 26,090,562 35,055,720 37,224,660
Other current liabilities 12,615,086 18,790,818 12,472,887
Total current liabilities 426,797,465 455,635,248 398,440,477
Non-current liabilities
Rental received in advance - net of current portion 7 16,378,032 17,370,640 18,363,248
Deferred tax liabilities 4, 23 46,948,504 45,135,785 42,962,432
Provision for long-term employee benefits 17 136,616,787 118,858,035 90,146,993
Total non-current liabilities 199,943,323 181,364,460 151,472,673
Total liabilities 626,740,788 636,999,708 549,913,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of financial position (continued)

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

As at 31 December 2013

S AR 4

(Unit: Baht)
31 December | 31 December 1 January
Note 2013 2012 2012
(Restated)
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Registered
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
528,000,000 528,000,000 528,000,000
Issued and paid-up
799,988 non-cumulative preferred shares of Baht 10 each 18 7,999,880 7,999,880 7,999,880
52,000,012 ordinary shares of Baht 10 each 520,000,120 520,000,120 520,000,120
Additional paid-in capital
Premium on preferred shares 49,209,704 49,209,704 49,209,704
Premium on ordinary shares 337,598,339 337,598,339 337,598,339
Retained earnings
Appropriated-statutory reserve 19 52,800,000 52,800,000 47,948,016
Unappropriated 1,252,435,620 | 1,007,007,196 780,092,172
Other components of shareholders’ equity 14,555,604 14,555,604 14,555,604
Total shareholders’ equity 2,234,599,267 | 1,989,170,843 1,757,403,835

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

2,861,340,055

2,626,170,551

2,307,316,985

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income statement

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2013 2012
(Restated)

Revenues
Sales 7 2,641,651,742 2,569,437,313
Service income 7 142,798,773 134,279,400
Other income 21 152,641,925 166,022,993
Total revenues 2,937,092,440 2,869,739,706
Expenses
Cost of sales 2,119,627,178 2,158,908,312
Cost of service 122,793,707 133,418,131
Selling expenses 141,190,598 66,151,653
Administrative expenses 131,784,177 143,244,488
Total expenses 2,515,395,660 2,501,722,584
Profit before income tax expense 421,696,780 368,017,122
Income tax expense 23 (83,977,164) (82,250,731)
Profit for the year 337,719,616 285,766,391
Earnings per share 24
Basic earnings per share

Profit for the year 6.49 5.50
Diluted earnings per share

Profit for the year 6.40 5.41

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
Note 2013 2012
(Restated)

Profit for the year 337,719,616 285,766,391
Other comprehensive income for the year
Actuarial losses 17 (15,052,638) -
Income tax effect 4, 23 3,010,528 -
Total comprehensive income for the year 325,677,506 285,766,391

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

Crown Seal Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2013

L O e oy Al

(Unit: Baht)
2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 421,696,780 368,017,122
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Allowance for diminution in value of inventories
and write off of inventories and spare parts 26,248,644 18,366,735
Depreciation and amortisation 112,315,629 110,237,309
Gain on sales of long-term investments (4,018,007) -
Reversal of loss on diminution in value of long-term investments (7,314,000) -
Loss on sales of investment properties - 266,000
Loss (gain) on sales of equipment (211,859) 7,050,204
Provision for long-term employee benefits 4,943,229 8,632,661
Interest income (15,140,877) (10,313,599)
Dividend income (12,000) (8,400)
Unrealised loss (gain) on exchange rate (1,170,792) 563,951
Profit from operating activities before changes in
operating assets and liabilities 537,336,747 502,811,983
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Trade and other receivables (32,855,047) (31,034,782)
Inventories (64,672,925) (35,877,393)
Other current assets (556,789) (4,269,963)
Other non-current assets 587,606 5,299,324
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Trade and other payables (14,532,786) 53,315,679
Other current liabilities (6,192,720) 6,332,969
Rental received in advance (992,608) (805,941)
Provision for long-term employee benefits (2,237,115) 20,078,381
Cash flows from operating activities 415,884,363 515,850,257
Cash paid for corporate income tax (92,090,095) (80,202,891)
Net cash flows from operating activities 323,794,268 435,647,366

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Crown Seal Public Company Limited

For the year ended 31 December 2013

(Unit: Baht)
2013 2012
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash paid for purchase of long-term investments - (81,000,000)
Cash receipt from sales of long-term investments 58,018,007 -
Cash receipt from sales of investment properties - 1,000,000
Acquisitions of equipment (284,345,773) (108,102,516)
Increase (decrease) in advance paid for purchase of machinery 12,375,400 (12,375,400)
Proceeds from sales of equipment 5,415,300 12,032,307
Increase in intangible assets (1,183,400) (224,050)
Interest income 15,303,551 9,213,487
Dividend income 12,000 8,400
Net cash flows used in investing activities (194,404,915) (179,447,772)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividend paid (80,249,082) (53,999,383)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (80,249,082) (53,999,383)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 49,140,271 202,200,211
Effect of exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents 1,478,528 (566,886)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 438,627,292 236,993,967
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year (Note 8) 489,246,091 438,627,292
Supplemental cash flows information
Non-cash transactions: -
Adjustment of provision for long-term employee benefits 15,052,638 -

D AEOCETTEeTTTYr A

Statement of cash flows (continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements

Crown Seal Public Company Limited
For the year ended 31 December 2013

1. General information

Crown Seal Public Company Limited (“the Company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled
in Thailand. Its parent company is Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. (Formerly known as “Japan Crown Cork
Co., Ltd.”), which was incorporated in Japan. The parent company of the Group is Toyo Seikan Group
Holdings, Ltd. (Formerly known as “Toyo Seikan Ltd.”). The Company is principally engaged in the
manufacture and sale of caps for bottles and the hire of printing sheets. The registered office of the
Company is at 5 Soi Rangsit - Nakhon Nayok 46, Tambon Prachatipat, Amphur Thanyaburi, Pathum
Thani.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
enunciated under the Accounting Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in
compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department of Business Development dated
28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company.
The financial statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial
statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed
in the accounting policies.

3. New accounting standards

Below is a summary of accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting period and
those that will become effective in the future.
(@) Accounting standards that became effective in the current accounting period

Accounting standards:
TAS 12 Income Taxes
TAS 20 (revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of
Government Assistance
TAS 21 (revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

Financial Reporting Standard:

TFRS 8 Operating Segments
Accounting Standard Interpretations:
TSIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities
TSIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets
TSIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its
Shareholders

Accounting Treatment Guidance for Transfers of Financial Assets

usSyN Wty nm- (UMsY)
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These accounting standards, financial reporting standard, accounting standard interpretations and

accounting treatment guidance do not have any significant impact on the financial statements, except
for the following accounting standard.

TAS 12 Income Taxes

This accounting standard requires an entity to identify temporary differences between the carrying amount
of an asset or liability in the statement of financial position and its tax base and recognise the tax
effects as deferred tax assets or liabilities subjecting to certain recognition criteria. The Company has
changed this accounting policy in this current period and restated the prior year’s financial statements,
presented as comparative information, as though the Company had initially recognised the tax effects
as deferred tax assets or liabilities. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting policy has been
presented in Note 4.

(b) Accounting standards that will become effective in the future
Effective date

Accounting Standards:

TAS 1 (revised 2012) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2014
TAS 7 (revised 2012) Statement of Cash Flows 1 January 2014
TAS 12 (revised 2012) Income Taxes 1 January 2014
TAS 17 (revised 2012) Leases 1 January 2014
TAS 18 (revised 2012) Revenue 1 January 2014
TAS 19 (revised 2012) Employee Benefits 1 January 2014
TAS 21 (revised 2012) The Effects of Changes in Foreign 1 January 2014
Exchange Rates
TAS 24 (revised 2012) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2014
TAS 28 (revised 2012) Investments in Associates 1 January 2014
TAS 31 (revised 2012) Interests in Joint Ventures 1 January 2014
TAS 34 (revised 2012) Interim Financial Reporting 1 January 2014
TAS 36 (revised 2012) Impairment of Assets 1 January 2014
TAS 38 (revised 2012) Intangible Assets 1 January 2014

Financial Reporting Standards:

TFRS 2 (revised 2012)
TFRS 3 (revised 2012)
TFRS 4

TFRS 5 (revised 2012)

TFRS 8 (revised 2012)

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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Business Combinations

Insurance Contracts

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations

Operating Segments
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Accounting Standard Interpretations:

TSIC 15
TSIC 27

TSIC 29
TSIC 32

Operating Leases - Incentives
Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease
Service Concession Arrangements: Disclosures

Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs

Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:

TFRIC 1

TFRIC 4

TFRIC 5

TFRIC 7

TFRIC 10
TFRIC 12
TFRIC 13
TFRIC 17
TFRIC 18

The Company’s management believes that these accounting standards, financial reporting standard,
accounting standard interpretations and financial reporting standards interpretations will not have any

Changes in Existing Decommissioning,
Restoration and Similar Liabilities

Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease

Rights to Interests arising from
Decommissioning, Restoration and
Environmental Rehabilitation Funds

Applying the Restatement Approach
under TAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies

Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment

Service Concession Arrangements

Customer Loyalty Programmes

Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners

Transfers of Assets from Customers

— a4 a a4 a

Effective date

January 2014
January 2014

January 2014
January 2014

January 2014

January 2014

January 2014

January 2014

January 2014
January 2014
January 2014
January 2014
January 2014

significant impact on the financial statements for the year when they are initially applied.

Cumulative effect of the change in accounting policy due to the adoption of new accounting standard

During the current year, the Company made the change described in Note 3, as a result of the
adoption of TAS 12 Income Taxes. The cumulative effect of the change in the accounting policy has

been separately presented in the statements of changes in shareholders’ equity.

The amounts of adjustments affecting the statements of financial position and the statements of income

and comprehensive income are summarised below.

usSyN Wty nm- (UMsY)
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Statement of financial position
Increase in deferred tax assets
Increase in deferred tax liabilities

Decrease in unappropriated

retained earnings
Decrease in other components

of shareholders’ equity

Statement of income

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

1 January 2012

27574
46,949

(15,736)

(3,639)

Increase in income tax expenses (Thousand Baht)

Decrease in profit for the year (Thousand Baht)

Decrease in basic earnings per share (Baht)

Decrease in diluted earnings per share (Baht)

Statement of comprehensive income

Increase in other comprehensive income for the year

(Thousand Baht)

5. Significant accounting policies

5.1 Revenue recognition

(Restated)

23,603
45,136

(17,894)

(3,639)

25,404
42,962

(13.919)

(3.639)

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

2013 2012
(Restated)
852 3,975
(852) (3,975)
(0.02) (0.07)
(0.02) (0.08)
3,011 -

Sales of goods are recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyers. Sales are the invoiced value, excluding value added tax of goods supplied after

deducting discounts and allowances.

Service revenue is recognised when services have been rendered taking into account the stage of

completion.

Rental income is recognised as income over the term of the lease agreement.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.

Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established.

Export subsidies granted by the Ministry of Finance in the form of tax coupons are recognised as income

when the Company obtains written notification of approval of the tax coupon.

: SiInUUSOIU 2556
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5.2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with
an original maturity of three months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.

5.3 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is
provided for the estimated losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is
generally based on collection experiences and analysis of debt aging.

5.4 Inventories

Finished goods and work in process are valued at the lower of standard cost (which approximates
actual cost) and net realisable value. Standard cost includes all production costs and attributable factory
overheads.

Raw materials, chemicals, spare parts and factory supplies are valued at the lower of average cost and
net realisable value and are charged to production costs whenever consumed.

5.5 Investments

Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the Company classifies as other investments, are
stated at cost net of allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).

5.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value. Any gains or losses arising from changes in
the value of investment properties are recognised in the income statement when incurred.

On disposal of investment properties, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset is recognised in the income statement in the period when the asset is derecognised.

5.7 Property, plant and equipment/Depreciation

Land is stated at the revalued amount. Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of assets (if any).

Land are initially recorded at cost on the acquisition date, and subsequently revalued by an independent
professional appraiser to their fair values. Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity to ensure that
the carrying amount does not differ materially from fair value at the end of reporting period.

Differences arising from the revaluation are dealt with in the financial statements as follows:

- When an asset’s carrying amount is increased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s assets,
the increase is credited directly to the other comprehensive income and the cumulative increase
is recognised equity under the heading of “Revaluation surplus on assets”. However, a revaluation
increase is recognised as income to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease in respect

of the same asset previously recognised as an expense.

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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- When an asset’s carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation of the Company’s
assets, the decrease is recognised in the income statement. However, the revaluation decrease
is charged to the other comprehensive income to the extent that it does not exceed an amount

already held in the “Revaluation surplus on assets” in respect of the same assets.

Depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line basis
over the following estimated useful lives.

Buildings and building improvements 5 - 20 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 15 years
Furniture, fixtures, office equipment and motor vehicles 3 -5 vyears

Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on land and assets under installation.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is
included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

5.8 Intangible assets and amortisation

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses
(if any).

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and
tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method of such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each
financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to the income statement.

A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows.

Useful lives
Computer software 5 years
Licenses 6 years

59 Related party transactions

Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the Company,
whether directly or indirectly, or which are under common control with the Company.

They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest
in the Company that gives them significant influence over the Company, and key management personnel,
and directors and officers with authority in the planning and direction of the Company’s operations.
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510 Long-term leases

Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and
the present value of the minimum lease payments. The outstanding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to the income
statement over the lease period. The equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the
useful life of the asset.

Leases of equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

5.11 Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also the Company’s functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at
the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.
5.12 Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company performs impairment reviews in respect of the property,
plant and equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that an asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an
asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use, is less than
the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. However in cases where land was previously
revalued and the revaluation was taken to equity, a part of such impairment is recognised in equity up
to the amount of the previous revaluation.

In the assessment of asset impairment if there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The increased carrying amount of the asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss
shall not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the income statement unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal, which exceeds the carrying amount
that would have been determined, is treated as a revaluation increase.

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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5.13 Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when
incurred.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans)

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and by the Company.
The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the Company’s contributions are recognised as
expenses when incurred. In addition, the Company has contributions for provident fund made before the
Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530 was effective. The Company manages this fund itself and will pay it to
the employees upon their termination.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) and other long-term employee benefits

The Company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon
retirement under labor law. The Company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined
benefit plan. In addition, the Company provides other long-term employee benefit plan, namely long
service awards.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined
by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial techniques, using the projected unit
credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) are recognised
immediately in other comprehensive income and for other long-term benefits are recognised immediately
in the income statement.

5.14 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

5.15 Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation
authorities, based on taxable profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.

Deferred tax

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end
of the reporting period.
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The Company recognises deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise
deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary
differences and tax losses carried forward can be utilised.

At each reporting date, the Company reviews and reduces the carrying amount of deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

The Company records deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items that are
recorded directly to shareholders’ equity.

5.16 Forward exchange contracts

Receivables and payables arising from forward exchange contracts are translated into Baht at the rates
of exchange ruling at the end of reporting period. Unrecognised gains and losses from the translations
are included in determining income. Premiums or discounts on forward exchange contracts are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the contract periods.

6. Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires
management to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain.
These judgments and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures; and actual results could differ
from these estimates. Significant judgments and estimates are as follows.

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the
management is required to use judgment regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of
the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgment and
estimates based upon, among other things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts
and the prevailing economic condition.

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories

Allowances for diminution in the value of inventories accounts are intended to adjust the value of
inventories for probable losses. The management uses judgment to estimate losses, based on an analysis
of inventory aging, taking into account the current situation with respect to sales of inventory items, on
a specific basis.

Allowance for diminution in value of investments

The Company treats other investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below their cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgment of the management.

Usun Wity 9nm- (Uisu)
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Investment properties

The Company presents investment property at the fair value estimated by an independent appraiser,
and recognises changes in the fair value in the income statement. The independent appraiser values
the investment property using the sales comparison approach and the depreciated replacement cost
approach. The key assumptions used in estimating the fair value are described in Note 12.

Property plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of
the useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and
residual values when there are any changes.

The Company measures land at revalued amounts. Such amounts are determined by the independent
valuer using sales comparison approach, and such valuation involves certain assumptions and estimates.

In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and equipment for impairment on a
periodical basis and records impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount
is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgments regarding forecast of future revenues and
expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require
management to make estimates of cash flows to be generated by the asset and to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefits

The obligation under the defined benefit plan and other long-term employee benefit plans is determined
based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including
discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

7. Related party transactions

During the years, the Company had significant business transactions with related parties. Such
transactions, which are summarised below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded
on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between the Company and those related parties.
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174 i Annual Report 2013



Sales of caps

Service income from printing sheets
Rental income

Sales of equipment, spare parts and raw

materials

Administrative income
Purchases of raw materials
Purchases of spare parts and machinery

Royalty fee

Claim payment for damaged goods

Transfer value of machine shared
the ownership

Dividend paid

Directors and management’s benefits

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012 Transfer pricing policy
687,294 821,047 Market price
139,818 133,412 Market price
3,184 3,165 Contract price
1,513 1,119 Price charged to other
customers in the normal
course of business
9,365 7,959 Contract price
2177 4243 Market price
33,001 47,342 Market price
25,155 20,061 A percentage of net sales of
each product
6,984 614 At cost
4,190 8,240 At cost
51,984 35,042 As declared

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company had employee benefit expenses

payable to its directors and management as below.

Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits

Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
18,146 20,543
153 214
18,299 20,757

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the balances of the accounts between the Company and those

related parties are as follows.

Trade accounts receivable - related parties (Note 9)
Other accounts receivable- related parties (Note 9)

Other accounts payable- related parties (Note 16)

Rental received in advance
Rental received in advance
Less: Current portion

Net

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
83,590 116,335
8,215 12,047
17,821 17,547
17,557 18,550
(1,179) (1,179)
16,378 17,371
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Additional information concerning the transactions with the related parties is as follows.

a) The relationships between the Company and related parties are summarised below.

Company Type of business Relationship
Boonrawd Brewery Group Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Thai Namthip Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Serm Suk Public Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of beverages Shareholder and common directors
Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd. Manufacture and sale of packaging Shareholder and common directors
Nippon Closures Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of packaging Shareholder and common directors
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. = Manufacture and sale of 2 & 3 - Common shareholders and directors
piece cans
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Manufacture and sale of plastic Common shareholders and directors
packaging
Saiwai Shoji Co., Ltd. Sale of machinery and spare parts = Common shareholders
Toyo Filling International Co., Ltd. Containing service and sale of Common shareholders
aerosol can
Kanagata (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Plastic injection mould and blow Common shareholders

mould manufacturing

During the second quarter of 2013, Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. was formed by a merger
among Wellpack Innovation Co., Ltd., Toyo Pack International Co., Ltd., and Toyo Seikan Technical

and Administration Service Center (Asia) Co., Ltd.

b) The transactions with trade accounts receivable - related parties are conducted in the normal
course of business of the Company and in accordance with its established objectives, which are
the manufacture and distribution of products to customers who are shareholders of the Company

and are in competition with each other, and the provision of printing services.

c) Other accounts receivable - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from rental, sales of
equipment and spare parts, administrative assistance and the provision of IT infrastructure services

to related companies.

d) Other accounts payable - related parties comprise the outstanding balances from purchases of
raw materials, spare parts and machinery, accrued royalty fee and accrued claims payments for

damaged goods.

e) The stipulated conditions of the provision of printing services to Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co.,

Ltd. are that payment is to be made on a monthly basis and the period of service is indefinite.

f) Rental received in advance represents rental received under the agreement to rent out certain plots

of land to Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. for a period of 30 years, ending 1 July 2031.
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Moreover, the Company entered into agreements to rent out additional land and building to
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. The rental for this land, determined based on the appraisal
value, and for the building, calculated on the basis of depreciated cost, is payable in annual
amounts. Compensation for the years 2013 and 2012 totaled Baht 0.3 million and Baht 0.3 million,
respectively. The Company extended the rental agreements for a further period of one year, ending

August 2014, with the total value of the agreement being Baht 0.3 million.

9) The Company rents office space and provides central services, to Toyo Seikan Technical and
Administration Service Center Co., Ltd. Compensation for the years ended December 2013 and

2012 totaled Baht 1 million and Baht 1 million, respectively, payable on a monthly basis.

The Company extended the term of office rental with provision of central services for one year,
ending December 2014, with compensation amounting to Baht 1 million to Toyo Seikan (Thailand)
Co., Ltd.

h) The Company entered into agreements to provide the rentals of server and storage machine to
the related companies in the group of Toyo Seikan Group Holdings Ltd. Agreements cover for a
period of 4 years, ending December 2014. Compensation is Baht 3 million, payable on an annual

basis.

i) The Company entered into agreements to provide administrative services for computer software
and hardware and personnel systems to related companies in the group of Toyo Seikan Group
Holdings Ltd. Compensation under these agreements for the years 2013 and 2012 totaled Baht

7 million per annum, payable on a monthly basis.

The Company extended the agreements to provide above services for a period of one year, ending

December 2014, with compensation amounting to Baht 7 million.

During the second quarter of current year, the Company provided SAP installation services to
Toyo Seikan (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The service agreement was for a period of three months, ended
June 2013, with compensation payable at estimated cost plus a fixed margin, which totaled Baht

2 million. Payment is due upon completion of service.

)] The Company entered into technical license agreement with Nippon Closures Co., Ltd., whereby
the Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of caps. The agreement ends
in December 2017. Compensation is payable at a percentage of net sales of products stipulated

in the agreement, on a semi-annual basis.

Moreover, the Company entered into an additional technical license agreement with such company,
whereby the Company receives technical support services for the manufacture of composite caps.
The agreement runs for 6 years, ending December 2016, with compensation in the form of an initial

payment of JPY 5 million yen and an annual fee at a percentage of net sales of these products.
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8.

9.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash
Bank deposits
Total

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
156 242
489,090 438,385
489,246 438,627

As at 31 December 2013, bank deposits in savings accounts and fixed deposits carried interests between
0.10% and 2.95% per annum (2012: between 0.10% and 3.00% per annum).

Trade and other receivables

Trade accounts receivable - related parties

Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due

Past due

Up to 3 months

Total trade accounts receivable - related parties

Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties

Aged on the basis of due dates
Not yet due

Past due

Up to 3 months

3 - 6 months

6 - 12 months

Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties

Other receivables - related parties

Advances
Accrued income
Total other receivables - related parties

Other receivables - unrelated parties

Advances

Receivable from scrap sales

Others

Total other receivables - unrelated parties

Total trade and other receivables
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
59,676 70,990
23914 45,345
83,590 116,335

242,049 190,076
94,567 58,036

- 15,5631

84 -
336,700 263,643
2,457 4,422
5,758 7,625
8215 12,047
591 4,728

782 657
2,497 1,728
3,870 7,113
432,375 399,138




10. Inventories

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Reduce cost to net

Cost realisable value Inventories-net
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Finished goods 126,614 100,367 (12,975) (9,521) 113,639 90,846
Work in process 157,861 152,430 (7,111) (3,358) 150,750 149,072
Raw materials and 144,449 120,133 (2,440) (2,710) 142,009 117,423
supplies
Goods in transit 14,979 19,404 - - 14,979 19,404
Spare parts 48,220 54,427 - - 48,220 54,427
Total 492,123 446,761 (22,526) (15,589) 469,597 431,172

11. Long-term investments

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Shareholding
Company percentage (%) Carrying value
2013 2012 2013 2012
Heritage Stoneware Co., Ltd. 10.00 10.00 10,000 10,000
Bangkok Can Manufacturing Co., Ltd. 1.61 1.61 9,494 9,494
Petpak Co., Ltd. 10.00 18.57 35,000 89,000
Muang-Ake Golf Co., Ltd. 0.08 0.08 180 180
City Sports and Recreation Co., Ltd. 0.03 0.03 273 273
Muang-Ake Vista Golf Course Co., Ltd. 0.06 0.06 350 350
Total cost 55,297 109,297
Less: Allowance for loss on diminution in value (10,000) (17,314)
Long-term investments - net 45297 91,983
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12.

The Company’s management has assessed the value of the investment in Bangkok Can Manufacturing

Co., Ltd. based on the audited financial statements as of 31 December 2012 and the latest management
accounts of that company, and there was indication that previously recognised impairment of this investment
may no longer exist. The Company therefore reversed loss on diminution in value of investment of Baht
7 million in administrative expenses in the income statement of current year.

During the second quarter of current year, the Company sold 120,000 ordinary shares of Petpak Co.,
Ltd., or equivalent to 857% of that company’s registered capital, to Toyo Seikan Group Holdings, Ltd.
at a price of Baht 483.48 per share, or a total of Baht 58 million. The gain on the sale, amounting to
Baht 4 million, was recognised as other income in the statement of income of current year. Remaining
shareholding is 10% of registered capital.

Investment properties

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
Allocated land

and construction

Land for rent thereon Vacant land Total
Balance at 1 January 2012 143,498 160,500 122,500 426,498
Disposals during year - (700) (566) (1,266)
Balance at 31 December 2012 143,498 159,800 121,934 425,232
Balance at 31 December 2013 143,498 159,800 121,934 425232

In December 2013 and 2012, investment properties were revalued by an independent appraiser, American
Appraisal (Thailand) Co., Ltd. The appraised value of land was determined based on the sales comparison
approach, while the depreciated replacement cost approach was used to value construction in property
development projects. The appraised value of assets for the current year is immaterially differed from
the value previously appraised. The Company therefore dose not adjust its fair value.
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13.

Property, plant and equipment

Unit: Thousand Baht)

Revaluation
basis Cost basis
Furniture,
Buildings and fixtures, office
building im- Machinery and equipment and Asset under
Land provements equipment motor vehicles installation Total

Cost / Revalued amount

1 January 2012 84,402 334,776 1,846,939 59,828 44,462 2,370,407
Additions - - 12,289 3,166 92,648 108,103
Disposals - (257) (30,183) (4,655) - (35,095)
Transfers in (out) - 9,928 66,022 1,390 (77,340) -
31 December 2012 84,402 344,447 1,895,067 59,729 59,770 2,443,415
Additions - - 10,306 2,580 271,460 284,346
Disposals - (162) (12,194) (4,527) - (16,883)
Transfers in (out) - 44911 54,851 7,663 (107,425) -
31 December 2013 84,402 389,196 1,948,030 65,445 223,805 2,710,878
Accumulated depreciation

1 January 2012 - 239,046 1,276,654 46,387 - 1,562,087
Depreciation for the year - 11,845 90,911 5,761 - 108,517
Depreciation on disposals - (241) (10,563) (4,631) - (15,435)
31 December 2012 - 250,650 1,357,002 47517 - 1,655,169
Depreciation for the year - 11,555 93,261 5,350 - 110,166
Depreciation on disposals - (130) (7,149) (8,790) - (11,069)
31 December 2013 - 262,075 1443114 49,077 - 1,754,266
Net book value

31 December 2012 84,402 93,797 538,065 12212 59,770 788246
31 December 2013 84,402 127,121 504,916 16,368 223,805 956,612
Depreciation for the year

2012 (Baht 103 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 108,517
2013 (Baht 105 million included in manufacturing cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 110,166

The Company had its land revalued, at the latest in December 2011 by American Appraisal (Thailand)
Co., Ltd., using sales comparison approach.

Had the land been carried in the financial statements based on historical cost, its book value as of 31
December 2013 would have amounted to Baht 66 million (2012: Baht 66 million).

As at 31 December 2013, certain buildings and equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still
in use. The gross carrying amount (before deducting accumulated depreciation) of those assets amounted
to Baht 993 million (2012: Baht 915 million).

The Company shares the ownership of some building and machinery with Bangkok Can Manufacturing
Co., Ltd. and records the machinery in proportion to its ownership. The carrying amount of its share as
at 31 December 2013 was Baht 25 million (2012: Baht 28 million).
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14. Intangible assets

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012

Computer Computer

software Licenses Total software Licenses Total
Cost - at beginning of year 39,299 1,889 41,188 39,134 1,889 41,023
Acquisition 1,184 - 1,184 224 - 224
Disposals - - - (59) - (59)
Cost - at end of year 40,483 1,889 42372 39,299 1,889 41,188
Accumulated amortisation
- at beginning of year 36,863 630 37,493 35,985 315 36,300
Amortisation for the year 1,092 315 1,407 935 315 1,250
Amortisation on disposals - - - (57) - (57)
Accumulated amortisation
- at end of year 37,955 945 38,900 36,863 630 37,493
Intangible assets - net 2,528 944 3,472 2,436 1,259 3,695

15. Bank overdrafts and short-term loans from financial institutions

Unutilised bank overdrafts and short-term loan facilities of the Company as at 31 December 2013
totaled Baht 175 million and Baht 900 million, respectively (2012: Baht 175 million and Baht 940 million,
respectively). Such loan facilities are unsecured.

16. Trade and other payables

Trade accounts payables - unrelated parties

Other payables - related parties

Accrued royalty fee
Others
Total other payables - related parties

Other payables - unrelated parties

Other payables
Accrued expenses
Total other payables - unrelated parties

Total trade and other payables
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(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012

298,505 308,582
11,942 12,711
5,879 4,836
17,821 17,547
31,490 29,838
39,097 44,642
70,587 74,480
386,913 400,609




17.  Provision for long-term employee benefits

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plans) 45,679 42702
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plans) 71,862 54,659
Other long-term employee benefits 19,076 21,497
Total 136,617 118,858

Provision for long-term employee benefits (only defined benefit plans), being compensation payable on

employees’ retirement, was as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of year 54,659 54,659
Actuarial losses 15,053 -
Current service cost 3,545 2,623
Interest cost 2,347 2,310
Benefits paid during the year (3,742) (4,933)
Defined benefit obligation at end of year 71,862 54,659

Long-term employee benefit expenses (only defined benefit plans) included in the income statement was

as follows.
(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2013 2012
Cost of sales 4,204 3,497
Selling and administrative expenses 1,688 1,436
Total 5,892 4933
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Total cumulative amount of actuarial losses recognized in the other comprehensive income and
taken as part of retained earnings of the Company as at 31 December 2013 amounted to Baht 12 million
(net of income tax) (2012: Nil).

Principal actuarial assumptions at the valuation date were as follows.

2013 2012

(% per annum) (% per annum)
Discount rate 3.50 4.50
Future salary increase rate (depending on age) 5.00 5.00
Staff turnover rate 9.50 9.25

Amounts of defined benefit obligation and experience adjustments on the obligations for the current and
previous four periods are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Experience adjustments

Defined benefit obligation on the obligation
Year 2013 71,862 8,051
Year 2012 54,659 -
Year 2011 54,659 -
Year 2010 51,539 -
Year 2009 46,817 -

18. Share capital

The preferred shares of the Company are registered shares granting dividend entitlements at the rate
of the ordinary shares plus Baht 1.50 per share. Dividends on the preferred shares are non-cumulative.
Each preferred share has the same voting rights as the ordinary shares and is convertible to ordinary
shares in a ratio of 1:1 on the last day of every month.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, 799,988 preferred shares remained unexercised.

19. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set
aside to a statutory reserve at least 5% of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought
forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10% of the registered capital. The statutory reserve is not
available for dividend distribution.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company transferred profit for the year amounting to Baht 5 million to
the statutory reserve.
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20.

21.

22.

Revaluation surplus on assets

This represents surplus arising from revaluation of land. The revaluation surplus can neither be offset

against deficit nor used for dividend payment.

Other income

Income from sales of scrap metal and spareparts
Administrative income

Interest income

Insurance compensation from the 2011 flooding crisis
Others

Total

Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows.

Salary, wages and other employee benefits
Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance for diminution in value of inventories and
write off of inventories and spare parts

Reversal of loss on diminution in value of long-term
investments

Royalty fee

Freight-out expense

Repair and maintenance expenses
Raw materials and consumables used

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work
in process

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012

98,911 108,499

9,365 7,959

15,141 10,314

- 21,770

29,225 17,481

152,642 166,023
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012

403,635 382,701

112,316 111,423

26,249 18,367

(7,314) -

25,155 20,061

29,086 26,062

106,783 95,757

1,556,674 1,584,322

(31,678) 27,873

usSyN Wty nm- (UMsY)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited ~ §



Income tax / deferred tax assets (liabilities)

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are made up as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
(Restated)

Current income tax:
Current income tax charge 83,125 78,276
Deferred tax:
Relating to origination and reversal of

temporary differences 852 3,975
Income tax expense reported in

the statement of income 83,977 82,251

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)
2013 2012

Deferred tax relating to actuarial losses 3,011 -

Reconciliation between income tax expenses and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the
applicable tax rates for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

2013 2012
(Restated)

Accounting profit before tax 421,697 368,017
Applicable tax rate 20% 23%
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by

applicable tax rate 84,339 84,644
Effects of:

Non-deductible expenses 3,234 4573

Additional expense deductions allowed (4,448) (10,941)

Others 852 3,975
Total (362) (2,393)
Income tax expenses reported

in the statement of income 83,977 82,251
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24.

The components of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows:

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Statements of financial position

31 December 31 December 1 January
2013 2012 2012
(Restated)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts - - 64
Allowance for diminution in value of 4,505 3,118 5,232
inventories
Provision for long-term employee benefits 18,263 15,369 15,041
Rental receivable in advance 3,276 3,474 3,673
Others 1,530 1,642 1,395
Total 27,574 23,603 25,405
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation and amortization 27,371 25,558 23,384
Gain on change in the value of investment 15,939 15,939 15,939
properties
Revaluation surplus on land 3,639 3,639 3,639
Total 46,949 45,136 42,962

In October 2011, the cabinet passed a resolution to reduce the corporate income tax rate from 30%
to 23% in 2012, and then to 20% from 2013. In addition, in order to comply with the resolution of the
cabinet, in December 2011, the decreases in tax rates for 2012 - 2014 were enacted through a royal
decree. The Company has reflected the changes in the income tax rates in its deferred tax calculation,
as presented above.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive
income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year (excluding other comprehensive
income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted
average number of ordinary shares which would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation assumes that the conversion took place either at
the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.
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25.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share.

For the years ended 31 December

Weighted average number

Profit for the year of ordinary shares Earnings per share
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Baht) (Baht)
Baht) Baht) shares) shares)
Basic earnings per share
Profit for the year 337,720 285,766 52,000 52,000 6.49 5.50
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
Convertible preferred shares - - 800 800
Diluted earnings per share
Profit of ordinary shareholders assuming
the conversion to ordinary shares 337,720 285,766 52,800 52,800 6.40 541

Segment information

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting the chief
operating decision maker has received and regularly reviewed to make decisions about resources to
be allocated to the segment and assess its performance. The chief operating decision maker has been
identified as the Company’s authorised director.

For management purposes, the Company are organised into business units based on its products and
services and have three reportable segments as follows:

1. the manufacture and sale of caps segment
2. the hire of printing sheets for the can business segment
3. the investment property segment

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

The chief operating decision maker monitors the operating results of its business units separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and assessing performance. Segment performance
is measured based on operating profit or loss and total assets and on a basis consistent with that used
to measure operating profit or loss and total assets in the financial statements. However, the Company’
financing activities which give rise to finance costs and finance income, administrative activities, and
income taxes are managed on a group basis. Therefore these income and expenses are not allocated
to operating segments.
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The following tables present revenue and profit information regarding the Company’s operating segments

for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, respectively.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

For the years ended 31 December

Manufacture Hire of printing Investing in
and sale of caps sheets real-estate Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)
Sales and service income
- Local 2,020,139 2,006,302 142,799 134,279 1273 1235 2164211 2141816
- Export 621,513 563,135 - - - - 621,513 563,135
Total revenues 2,641,652 2569437 142,799 134,279 1273 1235 2785724 2,704,951
Segment profit 480,118 453,208 19,632 529 1,273 1,235 501,023 454,972

Unallocated income and expenses
Interest income

Other income

Administrative expense

Income tax expense

Profit for year

15,141 10314
37317 45975
(131.784)  (143244)
83977)  (82251)

337,720 285,766

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012 assets classified by segment are as follows.

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Manufacture and Hire of printing Investing in
sale of caps sheets real-estate Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Restated)
Property, plant and equipment 923,726 755,391 32,886 32,855 - - 956,612 788,246
Other assets - segment 827,907 753,898 13,760 15,201 425232 425232 1,266,899 1,194,331

Unallocated assets

Total assets

637,829 643,594

2,861,340 2,626,171

The Company mainly operated in Thailand, with sales derived from both local and foreign markets an

reflated in above table. All of non-current assets are located in Thailand.

For the year 2013, the Company and have revenue from three major customers in amount of Baht 1,129

million, arising from sales of caps segment (2012: Baht 908 million derived from two major customers,

arising from sales of caps segment).
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26. Provident fund

The Company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident
Fund Act B.E. 2530. Employees contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 5% of their salaries, and
the Company contributes at rates of 5%-10% of the employees’ salaries. For employees who joined the
fund before 1 January 2003, the Company has to pay extra contributions when their length of service
reaches 7 years and 10 years. The fund, which is managed by Kasikorn Asset Management Company
Limited, will be paid to the employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. During the
year 2013, the Company contributed Baht 16 million (2012: Baht 15 million) to the fund.

27. Dividends

Dividend per Dividend per
Approved by Total dividends preferred share ordinary share
(Thousand Baht) (Baht) (Baht)

Final dividends for Annual General Meeting of 53,999 2.50 1.00
2011 shareholders on 23 April 2012
Total dividends declared in 2012 53,999 2.50 1.00
Final dividends for Annual General Meeting of
2012 shareholders on 23 April 2013 80,400 3.00 1.50
Total dividends declared in 2013 80,400 3.00 1.50

A Baht 150,900 of the dividend declared in 2013 was for shareholders who have no right to receive
dividend, and a Baht 80,249,082 has actually been paid.
28. Commitments

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Company has the following outstanding commitments.

a) The Company has commitments, which mature within one year, to local and overseas suppliers

under purchase orders for raw materials, spare parts and service hiring, and capital expenditures,

as follows.
(Unit: Million)
Purchase Purchase orders
orders for raw for spare parts Purchase orders for
Foreign currency materials and services capital expenditures Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Baht 224 258 13 15 32 40 269 313
US dollar 1 1 - - - - 1 1
Japanese yen 1 18 6 6 14 - 21 24
Euro - - - - - 1 - 1

b) The Company has bank guarantees of Baht 8 million issued by a bank on behalf of the Company.
Letters of guarantees are to guarantee electricity usage of the Company and the purchase-sell

agreements with a state agency.
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291

Financial instruments

Financial risk management

The Company’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No. 107 “Financial

Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, accounts

receivable and payable. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they are

managed is described below.

a)

b)

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade and other receivables. The
Company manages the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and
therefore does not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the Company does not
have high concentration of credit risk since it has a large customer base. The maximum exposure
to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables as stated in the statements of

financial position.
Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its deposits at financial institutions.
However, since most of the financial assets and liabilities bear floating interest rates or fixed interest

rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.

Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarised in the
table below, with those financial assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified

based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs before the maturity date.

(Million Baht)
As at 31 December 2013
Fixed
interest rates
maturity within Floating Non-interest
1 year interest rates bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 482 7 - 489 0.10 — 2.95
Trade and other receivables - - 432 432
482 7 432 921
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 387 387
- - 387 387

usyN whdu 9nm- (UMsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited

1191



(Million Baht)

As at 31 December 2012

Fixed
interest rates
maturity within Floating Non-interest
1 year interest rates bearing Total Interest rate
(% per annum)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 380 59 - 439 0.10 - 3.00
Trade and other receivables - - 399 399
380 59 399 838
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - 401 401
- - 401 401

c) Foreign currency risk

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from trading transactions that are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Company seeks to reduce this risk by entering into forward
exchange contracts when it considers appropriate. Generally, the forward contracts mature within

one year.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as at 31 December

2013 and 2012 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
(Million) (Million) (Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign
currency unit)
US dollar 4 2 4 3 32.76 30.59
Japanese yen - - 21 22 0.32 0.36

Forward exchange contracts outstanding as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 are summarised below.

Foreign currency Sold amount Contractual exchange rate Contractual maturity date
2013 2012 2013 2012
(Million) (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 2 1 3112 - 3292 30.61 - 30.97 2013: 26 November

2013 to 18 June 2014
(2012: 5 January 2013 to
25 June 2013)
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29.2 Fair value of financial instruments

30.

31.

32.

Since the majority of the Company’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating
interest rates, their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in
the statements of financial position.

A fair value is the amount for which an asset can be exchanged or a liability settled between knowl-
edgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. The fair value is determined by reference to the
market price of the financial instrument or by using an appropriate valuation technique, depending on
the nature of the instrument.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital
structure in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2013,
the Company’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.28:1 (2012: 0.29:1).

Events after the reporting period

On 27 February 2014, the meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors passed a resolution to propose
to the Annual General Meeting of shareholders to be held in April 2014 to adopt a resolution to pay a
dividend of Baht 1.75 per share for ordinary shareholders and Baht 3.25 per share for preferred shareholders,
or a total of Baht 94 million, to the shareholders in respect of the 2013 profit. Such dividend will be
paid and recorded after it is approved by the Annual General Meeting of the Company’s shareholders.

Furthermore, the Board of Directors’ Meeting approved investment by the Company with two other
investors in the establishment of new company in the Republic of Indonesia for the production and
distribution of packaging caps for beverages, with a registered capital of up to an equivalent of Baht
200 million and the Company to hold 25% of all ordinary shares. However, this investment must await
the decision of the parent company, who is the other investor.

Approval of financial statements

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 27 February
2014.

usyN whdu 9nm- (UMsu)
Crown Seal Public Company Limited

193



SiEUUsTU 2556
194 ¢ Annual Report 2013



WacNnunyovusuUn
Our Products
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Our Products

1. Crown cap is a bottle closure made from
pressed steel sheet (tin free steel, tin plated steel) lined
with liner to prevent leakage. Once closed, Crown cap
preserves the original content quality with an excellent
sealing performance. Crown cap is used for carbonated
drink, beer, soda, and soymilk and fruit juice.

2. Pilfer-proof (PP Cap) cap is a screw cap
developed to protect against pilferage. It is made by pressing
aluminuim sheet into cylindrical shape, perforated (between
the body and flare) and lined. PP cap is rust-proof, easy
to open, can be recapped if the content is not wholly
consumed. Pilfer-Proof cap is suitable for carbonated drink,
health drink, spirit and medicine.

3. Maxi crown is bottle closure made from pressed
and scored tin free steel shell. The score is developed
for easy opening by simply pulling the attached ring. This
closure gives a perfect and pilferage. Maxi crown is recapping
for non refrigerate product.

4. Maxi cap is a bottle closure made from
aluminium sheet pressed into one piece, scored and lined.
Apart from the same general characteristic as Maxi crown,
Maxi cap made of aluminium, is rust-proof and more
suitable for product kept in high humidity or being wet
for a period of time. Maxi cap is used for drinking water,
beer, and spirit and fruit juice.

5. Maxi- P is a bottle closure made from scored
aluminium shell. The general characteristic is the same as
Maxi cap except the pulling ring is made of plastic instead
of aluminium. Maxi-P used for drinking water, beer, spirit
and Fruit juice.

6. Plastic cap is a screw cap made from plastic
resin which is melted and molded into shape. The inside
is designed either with or without liner material to prevent
leakage. The cap has knurls around the side for easy opening. A
tamper evidence band is provided for anti- pilferage purpose.
Plastic cap is used for carbonated, non-carbonated, tea,
energy drink, fruit juice, functional drink, drinking water and
etc.

7. Hand-crowner

The hand-crowner is specially designed to crimp
crown caps tightly, it is efficient in protecting the product
inside. The hand-crowner is easy to use and can be hand
carried.

8. Maxi-crimping machine

A Single-hand, pneumatic Maxi crimping machine
can be used to crimp either Maxi series. It is designed with
high technology to achieve utmost sealing performance.

For sales please contact: Tel.(662) 533 0450-9 Domestic sales ext.550 or Export sales ext557, Fax.(662) 974 1115
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